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EXPLANATORY NOTES

A deletion of any printed matter and the completion of any blank spaces need not be signed or initiallec.. Any alteration or

correction must be initialled by signatory(ies). :

Shareholders who have dematerialised their shares and wish to attend thé annual general meeting must contact their central
securities depository participant (CSDP) or broker who will provide themi with the necessary authority tc attend the annual
general meeting, or they may instruct their CSDP or broker as to how theyi wish to vote in this regérd. This has to be done in
terms of the agreement entered into between such shareholder and the C}SDP or broker. However, those: shareholders who

are recorded in the sub-register in electronic format in their cwn name are/entitled to complete the proxy form.

The chairperson of the meeting will be entitled to decline to accept the adthority of a person signing the proxy form under a

power of attorney or on behalf of a company unless that person's power of attorney is deposited at the offices of the company's

registrars not less than 48 (forty eight) hours (excluding Saturdays, Sundaysiand public holidays) before the meeting.

If two or more proxies attend the meeting, then the person attending the mieeting whose name appears first on the proxy form

and whose name is not deleted, will be regarded as the validly appointed prj’oxy.

When there are joint holders, any one holder may sign the form of proxy. | In the case of joint owners, the senior owner who
tenders a vote will be accepted to the exclusion of other joint holders. éeniority will be determined by the order in which
|

names stand in the register of shareholders. |

Documentary evidence establishing the authority of a person signing this form of proxy in a representativi: capacity must be

" attached to this form of proxy unless previously recorded by the company’s registrars or waived by the chairperson of the annual

general meeting. . |

The completion and lodging of this form of proxy will not preclude the shareholder who grants this proxy from attending the

_ meeting and speaking and voting In person to the exclusion of any proxy éppointed in terms hereof should such shareholder

wish to do so.

A company or any other body corporate wishing to vote on a show of hgnds should ensure that the resolution required by
section 188 of the South African Companies Act, 1973 (Act 61 of 1973),as amended (the Act), to authorise a representative to
vote is passed by its directors or other governing body. Resolutions authorjising representatives in terms of section 188 of the
Act must be received by the registrars no later than 48 (forty eight) hours (excluding Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays)
prior to the time fixed for the meeting.

\...'......‘...l.‘................".‘........l



JOHNNIC COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED (the company)

{Incorporated in the Republic of South Africa)
{Registration number 1889/000352/06)
Share code: JCM ISIN: ZAE000024584

For the annual general meeting on Thursday, 21 September 2006

A shareholder entitled to attend and vote at the meeting may appoint one or more proxies to attend and vote on a poll and speak in
his/her stead.

A proxy need not be a shareholder of the company.

.......................................................................................................... ) being a shareholder(s) of the company, and
entitled to.........l votes, do hereby appoint..............oco Of e or failing
him/her, the chairperson of the meeting, as my/our proxy to represent me/us at the annual general meeting to be held at Cinema |,
Cinema Level,Village Walk, corner Rivonia Road and Maude Street, Sandown, Sandton on Thursday, 21 September 2006 at 10h00 to vote
for, against or abstain from voting, as follows on:

For Against Abstain
I. The adoption of the company and group annual financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2006
2. The re-election, by separate resolution, of each of the following
directors:
2. P CDesai
22, P M Jenkins
23, T AWixley
3. The re-appointment of the independent auditors of the company
4. Special resolution number |: General authority to buy back shares
5. Ordinary resolution number |: Approval of remuneration of
non-executive directors
6. Ordinary resolution number 2: Authortty to sign all necessary
documents
Signed at.....o DMt e e 2006

Signature of shareholder(s).. ... ..o

Assisted by (Where appliCaDIE). ... .. v
Note:
I. Mark with an "X" whichever is applicable. Unless otherwise directed, the proxy will vote as he/she thinks fit.

2. If this proxy form is signed under power of attorney, such power of attorney, unless previously registered with the company, must accompany it,
failing which the proxy form cannot be used at the meeting.

3. This proxy form must be signed, dated and returned so as to reach the company's registrars, Computershare Investor Services 2004 (Proprietary)
Limited, 70 Marshall Street, Johannesburg; PO Box 61051, Marshalttown, 2107 at least 48 (forty eight) hours (excluding Saturdays, Sundays and public
holidays} before the meeting.
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Administration

Directorate

™M E Ramano (Chairperson)

P C Desai* (Deputy group chief executive officer)
H Benatar*

C B Brayshaw

P M Jenkins

D M Mashabela

W S Moutloatse

T RA Cliphant

T A Wixley

* Executive

Company secretary and registered office

J R Matisonn
Johncom House

4 Biermann Avenue
Rosebank, 2196
Johannesburg

PO Box 1746
Saxonwold, 2132

Contact details

Telephone: +27 11 280 3000
Fax: +27 11 280 5099
Internet: http//www,johncom.co.za

American Depositary Receipt (ADR) Program
CUSIP No: 47805P102

ADR to ordinary share: I:1

Company registration number

1885/000352/06

Legal advisors

Werksmans Inc
[55 5th Street
Sandown, 2196
Sandton

Private Bag 10015
Sandton, 2146

Shareholders’ diary

Financial year end

Sponsor

Nedbank Capital
A division of Nedbank Limited
3rd Floor Block F
Corporate Place
135 Rivonia Road
Sandown, 2196
Sandton |
PO Box | 144
Johannesbu;rg, 2000
\

Registrar%

Computersbare Investor Services 2004
(Proprietary) Limited

70 Marshall Street

Johannesbujrg, 2001

PO Box 61051

Marshalitown, 2107

o
Share carg fine

Computershare Investor Services 2004
(Proprietary) Limited

70 Marshall Street

Johannesburg, 2001

PO Box 62212

Marshalltown, 2107

Telephone:|
National 0861 100 917
International +27 |1 870 8224

Auditors }

Deloitte &'Tl’ouche
The Woodlands

20 Woodlands Drive
Woodmead, Sandton
Private BagiX6

Gallo Manar, 2052

31 March 2006

Reports

Interim results
Year end results
Annual report

Announced 24 November 2005
Announced 22 june 2006
Posted 28 August 2006

Annual general meeting

2| September 2006

Dates subject to alteration




6. Ordinary resolution number 2

"'Resolved that any director of the company or the company
secretary be and is hereby authorised to take all actions necessary and
sign all required documents issued by the company to give effect to
special resolution number | and ordinary resolution number | "

Voting and proxies

A shareholder of the company entitled to attend, speak and vote at the
annual general meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy or proxies to
attend, speak and on a poll to vote in his/her stead. The proxy need not
be a shareholder of the company. A form of proxy is enclosed for the
convenience of any certificated shareholder and own-name registered
dematerialised shareholder who cannot attend the annual general

meeting but who wishes to be represented thereat.

On a show of hands, every shareholder of the company present in
person or représented by proxy shall have one vote only. On a poll,
every shareholder of the company present in person or represented
by proxy shall have one vote for every share held in the company by
such shareholder.

Forms of proxy may also be obtained on request from the company’s
registered office. The completed forms of proxy must be deposited at,
posted or faxed to the registrars at the address below, to be received
by no later than 10h00 on Tuesday |9 September 2006. Any member
who completes and lodges a form of proxy will nevertheless be
entitled to attend and vote in person at the annual general meeting
should the member subsequently decide to do so.

Shareholders, other than own-name registered dematerialised
shareholders, who have demateriafised their shares through a central
securities depository participant (CSDP) or broker, who wish to attend
the annual general meeting, must request their CSDP or broker to issue
them with a letter of representation.

Should shareholders who have dematerialised their shares wish to vote
by proxy, they must provide their CSDP or broker with their voting
instructions in terms of the custody agreement entered into between
themselves and their CSDP or broker; in the manner, and within the

cut-off time, as stipulated in the custody agreement,

By order of the board

_J R Matisonn

Company secretary
28 August 2006

Registered office -
Johncom House

4 Biermann Avenue
Rosebank, 2196
Johannesburg

PO Box 1746
Saxonwold, 2132

Registrars

Computershare Investor Services 2004
(Proprietary) Limited

70 Marshall Street

Johannesburg, 2001

PO Box 61051

Marshalltown, 2107
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Directors’ statement regarding the utilisation of
the authority sought

The board of directors of the company (the board) has no immediate
intention to use this authority to purchase the ordinary shares of the
company. However, the board is of the opinion that this authority
should be in place should it be appropriate to undertake a share
repurchase during the currency of the authority.

Other disclosure in terms of the JSE Listings
Requirements

The following additional information, some of which may appear
elsewhere in the annual report of which this notice forms part, is
provided in terms of the |SE Listings Requirements for purposes of this

general authority:

o Directors and management - inside front cover, pages | and 2;
o Major beneficial shareholders - page 30;

o Directors' interests in ordinary shares - page 30; and

o Share capital of the company - page 60.

Litigation statement

The directors of the company whose names appear on pages | and 2
of the annual report of which this notice forms part are not aware of
any legal or arbitration proceedings, including proceedings which are
pending or threatened, which may have or had in the recent past (being
at least the previous |2 months) a material effect on the group’s
financial position.

Directors’ responsibility statement

The directors whose names appear on pages | and 2 of the annual
report, collectively and individually, accept full responsibility for the
accuracy of the information pertaining to special resolution number |
and certify that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, there are no
facts which have been omitted which would make any statement false
or misleading, and that all reasonable enquiries to ascertain such facts
have been made and that the special resolution contains all information
relevant to special resolution number |.

Material changes

Other than the facts and developments reported on in the annual
report, there have been no material changes in the affairs or financial
position of the company and its subsidiaries since the date of signature
of the audit report and up to the date of this notice.

5. Ordinary resolution nhumber |

"Resolved that the remuneration of the non-executive directors

with effect from | April 2006 will be as set out below:

Board
Chairperson|
Annual retair}uer

Attendance per meeting

ChairpersonF fees for

special services

Directors
Annual retainer

Attendance ;‘)er meeting

Audit committee
Chairperson
Annual retainer

Attendance per meeting

Member

Annual retair‘er
Attendance per meeting

|
Remuner’atioin committee
Chairperson
Annual retainer
Attendance ‘per meeting

Member
Annual retainer
Attendance per meeting

Investment and restructuring

) \
committee |

Chairperson }

Annual retainer

Attendance per meeting

Member i

Annual retairner
| ‘
Attendance per meeting
!

Restructuring oversight committee

Chairperson
Annual retainer

|
Attendance per meeting

Member
Annual retair‘er

Attendance ﬁer meeting

R150 000
R15 000

R130 000

R62 000
RI10 000

R58 000
R10 000

R40 000
R8 000

R50 000
R8 000

R30 000

R7 000

R50 000

R8 000

R30 000
R7 000

R50 000
R8 000

R30 000
R7 000"




JOHNNIC COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED
(Registration number 1889/000352/06)

(Incorporated in the Republic of South Africa)

("Johncom" or "the company")

Share code: J[CM  ISIN: ZAECQ0024584

- Notice is hereby given that the annual general meeting of shareholders

of the company will be held at Cinema |, Cinema Level, Village Walk,
corner Rivonia Road and Maude Street, Sandown, Sandton on
Thursday, 21 September 2006 at 10h00 for the purpose of considering,
and if deemed fit, passing, with or without modification, the following
resolutions:

. to receive, consider and adopt the annual financial statements of the
company and the group for the year ended 31 March 2006,
together with the directors’ and independent auditors’ reports;

2 to re-elect, by separate resolution, each of the following directors
who retire by rotation in accordance with the company’s articles of
association:

2.1 P C Desai
2.2 P M Jenkins
23 T AWixley

These retiring directors are eligible and available for re-election.
Brief biographies of these directors appear on pages | and 2 of the

annual report;

3. to re-appoint Deloitte & Touche as independent auditors of the
company; and

as special business, to consider and, if deemed fit, pass, with or without
modification, the following resolutions:

4. Special resolution number |

"Resolved that the company approves, as a general approval
contemplated in sections 85 and 89 of the Companies Act, 61 of
1973, as amended (the Act), the acquisition by the company (or by
a subsidiary of the company) of ordinary shares issued by the
company on such terms and conditions and in such amounts as the
directors of the company may decide, but subject always to the
provisions of - the Act and the Listings Requirements of the JSE
Limited (JSE), which general approval shall endure until the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the company (whereupon
this approval shall lapse unless it is renewed at the aforementioned
annual general meeting), provided that it shall not extend beyond
I5 months from the date of registration of this special resolution,

subject to the following limitations:

o the repurchase of securities is implemented through the order
book of the JSE trading system, without any prior understanding

A, $]090 9« v At LA e LI e

or arrangement between the company and the counter-party;
o the company is authorised thereto by its articles of association;

o the general repurchase by the company is limited to a
maximum of 20% in aggregate of the company's issued share

capital in any one financial year;

o the general repurchase by the subsidiaries of the company is
limited to a maximum of 10% in aggregate of the company's
issued share capital in any one financial year;

o the repurchase is not made at a price greater than 0% above
the weighted average of the market value for the securities for
the five business days immediately preceding the date on which
the transaction was effected;

o the repurchaée does not take place during a prohibited period
as defined in paragraph 3.67 of the |SE Listings Requirements;

o the company publishes an announcement after it or its
subsidiaries have cumulatively acquired 3% of the number of
ordinary shares in issue at the time that the shareholders’
authority for the purchase is granted and for each 3% in
aggregate of the initial number accjuired thereafter;

o the company and the group are in a position to repay their
debts in the ordinary course of business during the following
year;

o the consolidated assets of the company. fairly valued in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards,
are in excess of the consolidated liabilities of the company
during the following year;

o the ordinary share capital and reserves of the company and the
group are adequate for the next twelve months;

o the available working capital is adequate to continue the
operations of the company and the group during the following
year;

© upon entering the market to proceed with the repurchase, the
company's sponsor has complied with its responsibilities
contained in schedule 25 of the JSE Listings Requirements;

o the company remains in compliance with paragraphs 3.37 to
341 of the JSE Listings Requirements concerning shareholder
spread after such repurchase; and

o the company appoints only one agent to effect any repurchases
on its behalf.”

The reason for and effect of special resolution number | is to authorise
the company and its subsidiaries, by way of general approval, to acquire
its own issued ordinary shares, on terms and conditions and in amounts
to be determined by the directors of the company, subject to certain
statutory provisions, the JSE Listings Requirements and the limitations
set out above.
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Analysis of ordinary shareholders at 31 March 2006 @
[
) . Shareholding ‘ Total shareholding o
Classification 1-10 000 10 001-100 000 Over 100 000
Holders Shares Holders Shares | Holders | Shares Holders % Shares % .
(’000) (’000) | ("000) (’000)
Public companies — — — — 2 1 2553 2 0.l 2553 24 @
Banks 5 [0 | 36 I 963 7 02 | 009 1,0 .
Pension/provident funds 54 203 107 4475 83 | 30599 244 57 35 277 340 .
Growth funds/unit trusts 38 131 6l 2467 59 | 34908 158 37 37 506 36,1
Investment companies 37 45 14 470 3 2152 54 1.3 2 667 26 .
Nominee companies/trusts 460 705 41 1212 2 | 4058 513 120 5975 58 .
Insurance companies 24 57 22 817 15 | 10362 61 I4 1236 108 .
Individuals 2996 1474 16 387 (| 145 3013 705 2 006 1,9
Private companies 75 144 15 392 — | — 90 2,1 536 05 L
Other corporate bodies 53 £9 17 782 9 1 3674 79 18 4525 44 .
Close corporations 32 44 6 191 — } — 38 09 235 02 .
Medical aid schemes 4 7 8 289 — — 12 03 296 03
Total 3778 2 889 308 11518 185 . 89414 4271 100 103 821 100 .
% % .
[Tl Public companies 0,1 i 24 .
i Banks 02 - 700 [
3 Pension/provident funds 57 340 .
[} Growth funds/unit trusts 3,7 3 36,1
1 Investment companies ’ ‘ 1,3 26 .
.. Nominee companies/trusts Total x\ , 120 Total \‘\ Yo 58 .
[ Insurance companies | ' shareholding - ’ f 004 shareholding Tios ()
" Individuals (Holders) if); 705 S (Shares) / i, IR
| Private companies / 12l \k,// / 105 .
[J Other corporate bodies O s O 44 .
7 Close corporations J o9 3 0 02 ®
7 Medical aid schemes 303 i S %03 .
Classification ‘ ‘ Holders % Shares % .
(000) [
Resident ‘ 3740 876 98 519 949 .
Non-resident : 531 12,4 5302 5,1
Total j 4271 100 103 821 100 .
[
Stock exchange performance 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 o
Closing price‘ (cents per share) 6 099 l 3730 2062 | 378 1 250 .
Total number of shares traded ('000) 28 557 | 5105 4631 12 531 44 762
Total value of shares traded (R'000) 1 339 301 ; 152 140 77 176 169 827 | 442 808 .
Number of shares traded as a % of weighted average shares in issue 27,45 | 490 4,44 12,03 4296 .
Number of transactions 6 841 103 452 807 4 601
Highest price (cents per share) 6 350 4043 2700 | 651 12 800 .
Lowest price (cents per share) 3 500 2 066 I 375 1190 I 140 .
Average media index 24 465 14153 8225 5449 5631
Free float (%) 79 72 32 32 32 [ ]
L
L
@
L

i




Annexure 4

Johnnic Communications Limited 2006 2005

share incentive scheme Directors Employees Total Directors Employees Total
Share options outstanding at | April 929 950 4435500 5 365 450 905 130 3769020 4674150
Re-allocation on appointment of director 44 140 (44 140) —_

Allocated 169 820 | 353440 1 523 260 341 180 | 350040 | 691 220
Lapsed — (239 018) (239 018) — (325 850) (325 850)
Relinquished* (298 506) (617 062) (915 568) (316 360) (357 710) (674 070)

Share options outstanding at 3| March 845 404 4888720 5734124 929 950 4435500 5 365450

* Relates to options refinquished in favour of a cash bonus.

Allocation 31 March 31 March
price 2006 2005
Reconciliation of share cptions R Number Number
Grant date Expiry date
3 January 2000 2 January 2010 135,00 42 000 81 500
| August 2000 31 july 2010 148,00 —_ 5000
| April 2001 31 March 201 | 90,00 i3 140 19 660
| May 2002 30 April 2012 11,90 1 202 160 | 752 000
| July 2003 30 June 2013 14,69 1 543 754 | 947 080
| July 2004 30 June 2014 24,00 I 439 390 | 560 210
[ July 2005 30 June 2015 37,00 I 493 680
5734124 5365450

The options granted on 3 fanuary 2000 vested as follows:
25% - | year after allocation

a further 25% - 2 years after allocation

a further 25% - 3 years after allocation

the final 25% - 4 years after allocation.

All other options granted vest as follows:
20% — 2 years after allocation

a further 20% — 3 years after allocation

a further 20% — 4 vears after allocation

the final 40% — 5 years after allocation.

All options expire 10 years after grant date.




Annexure 3

CcTP* Other Total Total
| 2006 2005
| Rm Rm Rm Rm
BALANCE SHEET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES |
Tangible and intangible assets 535 3 566 439
Investments and long-term receivables 84 3 87 63
Current assets 735 68 803 783
Total assets 1354 102 | 456 | 285
Long-term borrowings — 48 48 52
Deferred taxation liabilities y 57 — 57 40
Current liabilities P 295 43 338 293
Total liabilities ‘ 352 91 443 385
Attributable net asset value 1002 I | 013 900
Indebtedness i — 51 51 49
Other ‘ (31) V (30) !
Book value L9971 63 | 034 950
1
INCOME STATEMENT ‘
Revenue 1236 202 | 438 | 254
Profit before taxation i 249 9 258 195
Taxation ‘ (72) 2) (74) (68)
|
Profit for the year ; 177 7 i 84 127
Attributable to:
Ordinary shareholders ‘ |75 7 82 125
Minority interest L2 — 2 2
{ 177 7 184 127

* Caxton and CTP Publishers and Printers Limited, as at 31 December.

0880000000000 0CO0CCOGCOCCOCOSSOEORONOOCOOTSOCTOTOCTSDOTCTS
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S communications

Effective Cost less Loans Share of Total
interest amount post-acquisition
written off reserves
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
% % Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm
37,4 36,1 80 80 —_— — 401 386 481 466
50,0 50,0 3 3 —_ — 352 304 358 307
30,0 30,0 —_ — —_ —_ 1 | 1 |
50,0 50,0 I 2 2 | I 4 4
28,6 28,6 —_ — — — -— — — _
47,2 4772 5 5 —_ — 130 1?2 135 117
40,0 40,0 —_— — 2 2 —_ —_ 2 2
25,0 250 —_— — —_— — 6 5 é 5
35,0 350 — — 24 24 — — 24 24
50,0 50,0 — — 3 4 3 é 5
30,0 30,0 | —_ — — —_ i |
various various —_ — 20 17 O I 19 '8
10 10 51 49 492 425 553 484
90 90 51 49 893 8l 1034 950

0000000000000 000000000 0000000000000 0000C0080

—_———————eee————
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CARVAVITE Cl \./ 4

as at 3| March 2006

Annexure 2

Associate Principal activity Country of Financial
incorporation year end
Listed
Caxton and CTP Publishers and Printers Ltd Printing, publishing and packaging South Africa June
Unlisted
Afmed (Pty) Ltd Investment holding South Africa June
Allied Media Distributors (Pty) Ltd Distribution of publications South Africa December
Allied Publishing Ltd Distribution of publications | South Africa December
Banner News Agency (Pty) Ltd Property investment holding | South Africa December
Caxton Ltd Printing, publishing and packagin!g South Africa June
Exclusive Books Airport (Pty) Lid Book retail \ South Africa March
Random House (Pty) Ltd Book publishing ; South Africa December
The Newspaper Printing Company Printing ; South Africa December
Three Groups Cinemas (Pty) Ltd Cinemas j South Africa March
Trade Mark Television Productions (Pty) Ltd Entertainment | South Africa February
Various professional sports teams Sports South Africa various

Total carrying amount of interests in associates

\l...‘..l...‘.."‘.......'.‘."...Q.‘....I..‘
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as at 31 March 2006

Annexure |

Subsidiary Principal Country of Issued Interest in Carrying amount of
activity incorpo- ordinary issued interest
ration share ordinary
capital share capital Shares Loans
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
Rm % % Rm Rm Rm Rm
Unlisted
Johncom Media Investments Ltd Newspaper, magazine South Africa * 100,0 1000 * * 188 238
’ and digital publishing
and distribution
Gallo Africa Ltd Music content production  South Africa 13 100,0 1000 ® * 128 186
and distribution
Jjohnnic Book Retail Ltd Book retail and cinemas South Africa * 100,0 1000 133 133 — (3)
Johnnic Entertainment Holdings Ltd Investment holding South Africa 4 100,0 1000 113 13 n ()
New Holland Publishing (Pty) Ltd Books and maps.publishing South Africa * 100,0 1000 70 70 10 15
and distribution
Johnnic Communications Media and entertainment  South Africa * 100,0 1000 * * — —

Africa (Pty) Ltd

Johnnic Communications Management services South Africa * 100,0 1000 * * 36 71
Management Services (Pty) Ltd

Advowson Investments (Pty) Ltd Investrment holding South Africa * 100,0 1000 2 2 152 152

Johnnic Group Services (Pty) Ltd Management services South Africa * 100,0 1000 -_— — - —
318 318 513 656

* Less than RI million.
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for the year ended 3| March 2006

COMPANY GROUP
As at |2 months As at 12 months
31 March ended 31 March ended
2004 31 March 2004 31 March
2005 2005
Rm Rm Rm Rm

44, RESTATEMENT
Income statements

(77 Profit (loss) for the year previously reported 466
— (57) IFRS restatements - (78)
— — Share-based payments (30) (24)
— — Adjustments to provisions { 4
— — Depreciation and amortisation 29 (%)
— (57) Redesignation of financial instrument — (57)
Adjustment in respect of associate — 3
—_ — Other restatements (2 4)
Reversal of amortisation of intangible assets with indefinite
- — useful fives — 3
— — Operating leases accounted for on straight-line basis f )
— — Revenue recognition adjustments (3) —
— — Adjustment in respect of taxation — (6)
(234) Profit (loss) for the year restated 384
Cents
Basic earnings per ordinary share
previously reported 443
IFRS restatements {75)
Other restatements 4
Basic earnings per ordinary share restated 364
1416 1 140 Total equity previously reported I 654 2019
— 7) 0 (84)
— (57) IFRS restatements — (78)
— — Other restatements (2) (6)
1 416 | 083 | 652 | 935
Add back: items which do not impact total equity
— 57 Redesignation of financial instrument — 57
1416 1140 Total equity restated 1 652 1992

With the balance on the foreign currency translation reserve
at 31 March 2004 (the date of transition to FRS) being
deemed to be zero (as detailed in note 1), R22 million was
charged to accumulated profits at that date.
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COMPANY 1 GROUP Y
2005 2006 | 2006 2005
Rm Rm | Rra R @
| @
42, JOINT VENTURES |
% % % % @
38,6 38,6 Electronic Media Network Limited ‘ 38,6 38,6 .
386 38,6 SuperSport International Holdings Limited} 38,6 386
I-Net Bridge (Proprietary) Limited 1 81,3 83,3 @
BDFM Publishers (Proprietary) Limited | 50,0 500 o
African Business Channel (Proprietary) Lin’lﬂted 50,0 50,0
Northern Titles (Proprietary) Limited ‘ 50,0 500 L
Nu Metro (Village Market) (Proprietary) Limited 50,0 50,0 @
MTN Network Solutions (Proprietary) Limited —_ 40,0 ®
The following amounts are included in tlhe group's financial
statements as a result of proportionate consofidation of the .
joint ventures: ‘
| Rm Rm o
Revenue | I 487 | 285 e
Other expenses ‘ (249) (283) o
Non-current assets ; 206 184
Current assets : | 598 688 ®
Non-current liabilities 1 (139) (209) o
Current liabilities ‘ (555) (599)
Contingent liabilities and commitments | 597 686 @
Capital expenditure commitments } 43 — ()
43. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS ; ()
The group’s share-based payments schem“es are cash-settled .
schemes. The fair values of the options igranted under the .
schemes are actuarially determined using bi-nomial pricing
models, ‘ | [
}
During the vyear, the following was chargedto the .
— -— income statement | 136 75 [
— — Share-based payments liabilities | 192 89 @
\ :
— —_ Non-current | 122 59
— — Current i 70 30 :
— —_ Total intrinsic value of liabilities in respect df vested options 31 21 [
! o
i
| @
|
i o
|
| @

-




for the year ended 31 March 2006

COMPANY GROUP
2005 2006 2006 2005
Rm Rm Rm Rm

41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Directors’ remuneration
Non-executive directors

| 2 Fees for services as directors

26 25 Executive directors
5 5 Salaries

18 17 Bonuses and performance-related payments
3 3 Other benefits and payments

27 27 Total directors' remuneration

(26) (25) Paid by subsidiaries

| 2

The remuneration of executive directors is determined by the
remuneration commitiee having regard to comparable market
information. In the case of non-executive directors, retainers
and fees are approved by the shareholders. Further information
regarding the remuneration of individual directors is set out in
the remuneration report on pages 32 to 36.

Other related party transactions

Transactions between the company and its subsidiaries have
been eliminated on consolidation and are not disclosed in this
note.

Transactions between the group and its associates and joint
ventures were concluded at arm's length and include the

following:

Goods sold and services rendered

* Electronic Media Network Limited - 5 8

» Caxton and CTP Publishers and Printers Group 5 3
10 |1

Goods purchased and services received ]
» Caxton and CTP Publishers and Printers Group 153 139

Year~end balances arising from goods sold/purchased and
services rendered/received:

Receivables

* Electronic Media Network Limited 4 5

» Caxton and CTP Publishers and Printers Group | \
5 )

Payables

+ Caxton and CTP Publishers and Printers Group 10 8

The company, in the normal course of business, entered into
various transactions with Johnnic Holdings Limited, its holding
company until 24 March 2005. These transactions were
concluded at arm’s length and included a trademark fee of
R million for 2005.
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for the year ended 31 March 2006

40. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS (continued)

Defined benefit plan i

It is the policy of the group to ensure that the Johnnic Entertainment Limited fPension Fund is adequately funded to provide for the
pension liabilities of members of the fund. The current service cost is charged td the income staternent in the year in which the related
services are rendered by the in-service members. Actuarial valuations are carr|ed out at three-yearly intervals by .ndependent actuaries
using the projected unit credit method. The effects of differences between assumpt|ons and actual experience:, changes in actuarial
assumptions, and amendments to plans are spread over the estimated average remaining working lives of employees. The statutory
actuarial valuation prepared as at 31 December 2001, concluded that the fund was in a sound financial condition at that date. The
draft statutory actuarial valuation as at 31 December 2004 also concludes that the fund was in a sound financial condition at that date.

1
|
The principal actuarial assumptions used in the valuations are: |

| 2004 2001

|
Discount rate 4,0% p.a. 6,6% pa.
Expected return on plan assets 7.9% p.a. [1,7% pa.
Future salary increase | 5,0% p.a 7.6% pa.
Future pension increase 1,.8% p.i 6,0% p.a.
The membership of the fund was constituted as follows:
In-service members 20 26
Pensioner members 476 555
The financial condition of the fund was as follows:

R Rm

Fair value of plan assets 132 125
Fair value of plan liabilities (132 (86)
Fair value of plan surplus i — 39

The 2004 draft valuation takes into account the surplus apportionment scheme approved by the plan's trustees. An employer's surplus
account of R13 million is included in the fair value of plan liabilities.

Amounts recognised in income are as follows (note 4): \

GROUP
2004 2005
Rm Rm

Current service cost

I




for the year ended 31 March 2006

40. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS
The group has retirement benefit plans covering substantially all employees. Eligible employees are members of either defined
contribution or defined benefit plans administered by the group, or are members of funds associated with industry or employee
organisations.

The South African retirement benefit plans are governed by the Pension Funds Act, 1956. The assets of the plans are held separately
from those of the group, in funds under the control of trustees. The cost charged to income represents contributions payable to the
plans by the group at rates specified in the rules of each plan (note 4).

Defined contribution plans

The defined contribution plans are designed to provide a lump sum on retirement or a combination of a lump sum and a pension.
The benefits are dependent on the investment performance of the plans. Both employees and group companies contribute to the
plans on a fixed contribution basis. Apart from contributions paid the group has no further obligations in respect of these plans.

The Johnnic Communications Limited Pension Fund, although it is principally a defined contribution plan, includes an element of defined
benefits. Details relating to the fund's defined benefit membership are presented below:

The principal actuarial assumptions used in the valuations are:

2004 2001
Discount rate 50% pa, 10,5% pa.
Expected return on plan assets 9.7% pa. 14.0% pa.
Future salary increase 65% pa. 10.5% pa.
Future pension increase 4.5% p.a. 10,5% pa.
The membership of the fund was constituted as follows:
In-service members 37 49
The financial condition of the fund was as follows:
Rm Rm
Fair value of plan assets 6 14
Fair value of plan liabifities (16) (14
Fair value of plan surplus — —
Amounts recognised in income are as follows:
GROUP
2006 2005
Rm Rm
Current service cost i —
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COMPANY GROUP

2005 2006 2006 2005
Rm Rm Rim Rm

35. ACQUISITION OF PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Additions
— —_ — 1o maintain operations 73 56
— —_— —to expand operations \1 45 70
— — Total additions (note 14) 1i8 126

36. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ;

— 383 Bank balances, deposits and cash 6%3 454
(rn —_ Bank overdrafts (note 25) i @an (9
an 383 ‘f 622 335

‘ |
Bank balances, deposits and cash have original maturities
of three months or less. The carrying amounts of these
assets approximate their fair values. |

Bank overdrafts are comprised as follows:

I —_ South African rand \ 24 5
— — Foreign currencies 1 7 4
3§ — | 31 19
37. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS
— — Guarantees in respect of subsidiaries and aséociates i [
— — Claims which may result from pending Iithaﬁion 4 14
— —_— Licence fee dispute with the South African Revenue Service il [
— —_ Unconditional programme and film rights pu:rchase obligations 585 675
— - | 602 701
38. CAPITAL EXPENDITURE COMMITMENTS
— —_ Contracted but not provided for 1 12 3
— —_ Authorised but not yet contracted for j 53 6
— —_ 64 9
The capital expenditure will be financed from existing
cash resources. \
39. LEASE COMMITMENTS :
At the balance sheet date, the group had outstanding
commitments for future minimum lease payments under
non-canceliable operating leases which fail due as follows:
— —_ Within one year ; 1o 4
— — In the second to fifth years inclusive ‘1 419 429
— — After five years \ £54 239
_ — | 68 782

!
Lease payments recognised in income are reflected
in note 4.

\
1
i
|
|
!
|
i
|




for the year ended 3) March 2006

GROUP
2006 2005
Rm Rm
34. ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Disposal of subsidiaries
During the year, the group disposed of the following subsidiary:
. Leadtrain (Proprietary) Limited on 3t March 2006
Net assets disposed
Property, plant and equipment —_ (h
Other non-current assets —_ S
Net current liabilities (assets) ) I
Bank balances, deposits and cash —_ (h
Total net assets disposed 8)) 5)
Profit (loss) on disposal I 3
Total consideration —_ (8)
Satisfied by:
Cash —_— 8
Net cash inflow arising on disposals
Cash consideration received —_ 8
Net bank balances, deposits and cash disposed —_ (h
— 7
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L
GROUP e
20056 2005
Rrin Rm L
34. ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES Y
Acquisition of subsidiaries o
During the vyear, the group acquired the following subsidiary: i ®
. Warwick Sport and Media (Proprietary) Limited on | April 2005 .
Net assets acquired ®
Property, plant and equipment -— 22 ®
Intangible assets - 14 P
Other non-current assets - 12 .
Bank balances, deposits and cash 3 27 e
Long-term borrowings - (13)
Net current (liabilities) assets g 3) 8 @
Total net assets acquired - 70 e
Minority interests - (7) e
Goodwil | 5 2
; @
Total consideration ‘ 5 95 ()
Settled by: % @
Cash | () (95) o
Net cash outflow arising on acquisitions | @
Cash consideration paid 1 ) (95) @
Net bank balances, deposits and cash acquired | 3 27 .
| @
) (68) s
@
o
L
L
o
@
@




for the year ended 3| March 2006

COMPANY GROUP

2005 2006 2006 2005
Rm Rm Rm Rm

33. ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES, ASSOCIATES

AND OTHER INVESTMENTS

Joint ventures
Disposal of interest in joint ventures

Net assets disposed

Property, plant and equipment o) —
Goodwill (6) —
Other intangible assets (8 —
Other non-current assets (%) —
Long-term borrowings | —
Net current liabilities 4 —
Bank balances, deposits and cash 4 —
— — Total net assets disposed (26) —
— — Profit on disposal (13) —
— — Total consideration (39) —
Settled by:
— - Cash 39 —
Net cash inflow arising on disposals
— —_ Cash consideration received 39 —
— — Net bank balances, deposits and cash disposed 4 —
— — 35 —
Acquisition of interest in joint ventures
287 — Investment in joint ventures
Net assets acquired
Property, plant and equipment — 49
Goodwill —_ 160
Other intangible assets —_— 65
Brands —_ 61
Other non-current assets — 97
Long-term borrowings —_ (15)
Net current liabilities — (192)
Bank balances, deposits and cash — 62
287 — Total consideration — 287
Settled by
(287) — Cash — (287)
Net cash outflow arising on acquisitions
— — Cash consideration paid —_ (287)
— — Net bank balances, deposits and cash acquired — 62
(287) —_ - (225)
— — Associated companies 2 2
— - Proceeds on disposal —_ 2
— — Net decrease in loans 2 —
73 — Other investments 32 67
— -— Purchase price —_ (6)
73 — Proceeds on disposal 32 73
— —_ Acquisition of minority interests (%)) —
214) —_ 60 (156)




NN D LS LIS QR ILIRICE PR ICLE I ICLl DLCLLA 3 IR 1LY JLUIILHTIVULAI) )

for the year ended 31 March 2006

COMPANY GROUP

2005 2006 \ 2006 2005
Rm Rm 1 Rr Rm

3{. RECONCILIATION OF PROFIT (L0155)
BEFORE TAXATION TO NET CASH GENERATED
BY (USED IN) OPERATIONS

@
@
@
@
(234 616 Profit {loss) before taxation 703 509 ()
Adjustments for:
Share of profits of associates (184) (127) @
7 2 Finance costs 25 37 .
(254) (194) Finance income allocated to: (52) (30) @
(2) (10) — operating activities (50) (28) @
(252) (184) — investing activities (2) 2 .
— — Depreciation 83 85 (]
— — Amortisation 20 15 .
Goodwill impairment 2 4
Increase (decrease) in post-retirement .
— —_ benefits liabilities ‘ i (2) ()
478 (430) Non-cash portion of exceptional items 49) (29) o
— — {Profit) loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment —— ()
— —_ Impairment charge 5 3 — @
— 2 Qdd-lot offer expenses ‘ 2 — (]
— —_ Other non-cash items : 51 40 .
Operating cash flows before movements in | o
3) ) working capital 1 615 501 e
| (2) Movements in working capital ; (C2)) (75)
| @
— — Decrease in inventories 1 39 35
— ) (Increase) decrease in trade and other receiVables (i 6 @
| (B (Decrease) increase in trade and other payables an (t1é) o
|
(2) {6) Net cash generated by (used in) operations 533 426 @
32. INCOME FROM INVESTMENTS e
Cash dividends received from: i
r | o
— 17 Subsidiaries |
31 929 Joint ventures [ )
58 66 Associates 64 60 .
2 2 Investments 1 — -
9l 184 70 60 et
@
@
@
@
o
a

I




for the year ended 31 March 2006

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

30.2 Interest rate risk
The group is exposed to interest rate risk where it is in an interest-bearing borrowed position.

30.3 Concentration of credit risk
The group's credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade and other receivables and its bank balances, deposits and cash. The group
has no significant concentration of credit risk as its exposure is spread over a large number of customers. The credit risk on liquid
funds is limited because the counterparties are banks with high credit ratings. The amounts presented in the balance sheet are net
of allowances for doubtful receivables, estimated by management based on prior experience and the current economic envirenment.

30.4 Fair value of financial instruments

2006 2005
GROUP Rm Rm
Cash and cash equivalents (note 36) 622 335
Embedded derivatives 24 20
Trade and other receivables 991 887
Long-term receivables 23 24
Trade and other payables and short-term borrowings (1 408) (1 363)
Financial instruments are carried at fair value.
30.5 Exchange rates to South African rand
Year-end closing rates 2006 2005
US dollar 6,13 6,24
British pound 10,64 11,79
Euro 7,46 8,09
Australian dollar 4,41 483
New Zealand dollar ) 3,77 4,45
Botswana pula L4 1.36
Kenyan shilling 0,09 008 .
Nigerian naira 0,05 005
Ghanaian cedi (per 100) 0,07 0,07
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@
30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) e
30.1 Foreign currency exposure (continued)
| L
Included in the group balance sheet are the following amounts denominated in currencies other than the functional currency ()
of the refevant entities:
2006 2005 @
Rm Rm o
Other Other o
South Rest overseas South Rest overseas
GROUP Africa of Africa operations | Africa of Africa operations ()
Assets ' ()
Non-current assets (]
British pound —_ - 24 — - 26 e
Australian dollar — —_ 14 _ . 13
New Zealand dollar —_ — 5 — . 7 .
Botswana pula —_ 5 — — - ®
Kenyan shilling —_ 20 — — b —
Nigerian naira —_ 89 — _ G _ o
Current assets @
US dollar 3 — — 3 — — ()
British pound — —_ 46 — . Ly) .
Australian dollar — —_— [ —_ . )
New Zealand dollar —_— — 2 — - 9] .
Kenyan shilling — 3 — _ 0 _
Nigerian naira — 20 — _ E _ .
3 137 102 3 33 112 :
Liabilities ()
Non-current liabilities
US dollar 7 —_ —_ — . _ ®
British pound — —_ [ — _ (]
Kenyan shilling —_— 3 — — | — )
Nigerian naira — 37 — — 14 —
@
Current liabilities ‘
US dollar 2 — — 8 — — .
British pound I — 106 — — 108 o
Australian dollar — — 9 — — e} ®
New Zealand dollar —_— — 2 — . 2 ®
Botswana pula — ] —_— — | —
Kenyan shilling — 8 — — ‘ — ()
Nigerian naira —_ 15 —_ — 3 — ®
Ghanaian cedi —_ f— —_ — | — .
10 64 118 8 24 121 e
e
!
| L
@
1 o
| e
| ™

I




for the year ended 31 March 2006

COMPANY GROUWP
2005 2006 2006 2005
Rm Rm Rm Rm
28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
— — Trade payables 285 292
—_— Sundry payables 300 295
— — Accrued expenses and other payables 345 256
— — Forward exchange contract liabilities 242 389
— —_ Current portion of share-based payments liabilities 70 30
— —_ Current portion of operating leases equalisation liabilities 6 3
I —_ | 248 | 265
29. PROVISIONS
Balance at Provided Utilised Balance at
31 March during the during the 31 March
2005 year year 2006
GROUP Rm Rm Rm Rm
Overage — 12 (6 I
Turnover rent 7 3 2) 8
Onerous leases 25 — (12) 13
32 15 (25) 22

» Overage
The provision represents royalties which are payable by Nu Metro Distribution to the studio houses. The provision is based on royalty
percentages, and the amount finally paid is dependent on the performance of the film.

+ Turnover rent
The provision is in respect of certain Exclusive Books stores, and represents the excess of "turnover rent” over "base rent” which is
payable to landlords.

* Onerous leases
The provision arises in Nu Metro Theatres, and is in respect of sub-economic leases. The provision is calculated based on discounted
future rental costs.

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
30.1 Foreign currency exposure

The group operates in the global business environment and therefore enters into transactions in currencies in addition to
functional currencies. Exposure to the risk of fluctuating exchange rates is reduced by the use of forward exchange contracts.
The group does not enter into derivative contracts for speculative purposes.

At the balance sheet date, the group had contracted to pay the following amounts under forward exchange contracts:

Foreign amounts Rand contract amounts  Rand fair value amounts

2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005

GROUP m m Rm Rm Rm Rm
US dollar 33 51 224 439 207 324
British pound 2 3 19 35 19 36
Euro ] 2 7 19 7 19
Hong Kong dollar 2 I 2 [ 2 f
Singapore dollar 2 2 6 8 ] 8
Canadian dollar — — l ! 1 !
259 503 242 389

R e — e AN gl repor, JI06 O
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26. POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS LIABILITIES
Certain group companies have unfunded obligations to provide post-retirement medical aid benefits to certain of their pensioners
and employees on their retirement. An obligation in respect of post-retirement medical aid benefits no longer forms part of the
conditions of employment for new employees. The quantum of the post-retirement medical aid obligation is determined by
independent actuaries.

2006 2005
Principal actuarial assumptions
Discount rate 8,0% p.a. 8.3% pa.
Healthcare cost inflation rate 6,5% p.a. 65% pa.
Number of members
In-service 683 746
Pensioners 445 454

2006 2005
GROUP Rm Rm
Post-retirement benefits liabilities at | April 123 121
Transfer in on acquisition of subsidiary —_ 8
Current service costs 4 4
Interest costs 10 12
Expected employer benefit repayments (6) (6)

131 139

Actuarial loss (gain) 3 (10)
Past service cost —_— (6)
Post-retirement benefits liabilities at 31 March 134 123

The present value of the unfunded obligation is fully provided.

!
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COMPANY GROUP
2005 2006 2006 2005
Rm Rm | Rm Rm
25. BORROWINGS (continued) |
Secured i
— e * Finance leases ; a7 10
Interests rates vary between 7,9% and 19,0% p.a.
Amounts are repayable within three to ﬂ\f/e years, with
the leases secured by the underlying assets.
— — * Wesbank } - 19
The loans bear interest at prime minus 115% p., are
secured by the underlying assets and are}repayable in
equal monthly instalments over 60 months.
— —_ + Tsogo Sun : 4 [0
The loan is interest-free with no fixed refpayment date.
— —_ Total secured borrowings ‘ 31 39
47 . 27 Total borrowings i 143 199
The maturities of the above borrowings aré as follows:
47 27 Within one year 114 184
— _— In the second to fifth years inclusive 19 i
— —_ After five years — 4
47 27 Total borrowings | 173 199
47 (27) Amount due within one year shown under|current liabilities (104) {184)
— - Total long-term borrowings 19 I5

|
Assets encumbered |
| 44 40

Property, plant and equipment (note 14)

*+ The group's bank overdrafts and call borrowings are denominated in the currencies of the countries of the group's operations and
carry interest at floating market rates. 1

* The group's management consider that the carrying amounts of bank borrowinés reasonably approximate their fair value, as they are
transacted at current market rates.

* In terms of the articles of association, the company's borrowing powers are unr‘estricted.

0000000000000 0000000000000000C0C00CC0C0O0C0CC0CC0CCFKTCFT0T

i

b ohnnic Communications Limited | Annual report 2006
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COMPANY GROUP
2005 2006 2006 2005
Rm Rm Rm Rm
23. SHARE CAPITAL AND PREMIUM
Authorised share capital
{20 000 000 (2005: 120 000 000) ordinary shares
12 i2 of 10 cents each 12 12
issued and fully paid-up share capital
103 821 159 (2005: 104 189 314) ordinary shares
10 10 of 10 cents each 10 10
814 796 Share premium 796 814
824 806 806 824
24, OTHER RESERVES
Non-distributable reserves
Post-acquisition portion of reserves of subsidiaries and
joint ventures not available for distribution 16 4
— — Foreign currency translation reserve 1 4
— — 17 8
25. BORROWINGS
Unsecured
I —_— * Bank overdrafts 3 [19
— — * Interest-free liabilities repayable in annual instalments of —_ \
R100 000 with the last instalment due in April 2009.
— —_ * RTG (Proprietary) Limited —_ 3
The loan bears interest at prime and has no fixed terms
of repayment.
— — * Johncom West Africa outside shareholders 30 14
The loans bear interest at 15% and have no fixed terms
of repayment.
— — * Various borrowings 17 5
The loans are interest-free and have no fixed terms
of repayment.
36 27 * Loan from BDFM Publishers (Proprietary) Limited 14 18
The loans bears interest at a rate floating between
5,5% and 6,5% and has no fixed terms of repayment.
47 27 Total unsecured borrowings 92 160
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@
COMPANY | GROUP ®
2005 2006 2006 2005
Rm Rm Rm Rm @
19. INVESTMENTS @
Non-current investments o
— — Unlisted investments at cost less amount written off 1 2 ()
— —_ Directors' valuation of investments \ | 2 .
20. INVENTORIES | ®
| @
— - Merchandise % 252 223
|
— — Work in progress | 7 [ @
- - Raw materials | 17 6 )
— -— Consumable stores and maintenance spare?s 6 4 .
— - Programme and film rights and sports everits rights 216 303
; )
_ — | 508 547 .
— — Inventories write-offs expensed 12 12 o
— —_ Inventories recognised as an expense in cojst of sales I 331 I 145 ®
i
21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES ®
— — Trade receivables 703 589 @
— — Gross 726 627 e
— — Provision for doubtful debts (13) (38)
— i Sundry receivables 240 248 @
C —_ Prepayments 48 50 [ ]
— ! 91 887 @
. . ] @
The directors consider that the carrying amount of trade
and other receivables approximates their fe%ir value. L
\
22. LISTED EQUITIES | ®
48 67 MTN Group Limited 87 48 @
— — Naspers Limited i 42 57 o
48 67 1 109 105 ®
The fair values of these listed equities arej based on quoted .
market prices at the balance sheet date, and are classified as .
financial assets at fair value through profit o}r loss. ()
|
i @
@
@
@

|
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for the year ended 31 March 2006

COMPANY GROUP

2005 2006 2006 2005
Rm Rm Rm Rm

I7. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND JOINT VENTURES
Subsidiaries

318 3i8 Unlisted shares at cost less amount written off
285 453 Net amount owing by subsidiaries
(réet) (90) Amount owing to subsidiaries
446 543 Amount owing by subsidiaries
603 771
449 393 Joint ventures
330 310 Unlisted shares at cost
119 83 Amount owing by joint ventures
I 052 1 164 Total interests in subsidiaries and joint ventures

Details of interests in directly held subsidiaries are set out in
Annexure | on page 78. Details of joint ventures are set out in
note 42.

i8. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

Listed
80 80 Directly held 481 466
80 80 Cost less amount written off 80 80
Share of post-acquisition reserves
net of dividends received 401 386
8 8 Indirectly held 490 424
8 8 Cost less amount written off 8 8
Share of post-acquisition reserves
net of dividends received 482 416
88 88 971 890
— —_ Unlisted 63 60
— —_ Cost less amount written off 2 2
— — Amount owing by associates 51 49
Share of post-acquisition reserves
net of dividends received i0 9
88 88 Carrying amount of interests in associates 1 034 950
917 1201 Market value - directly held listed associates I 20} 917
791 1 037 Directors' valuation - indirectly held listed associates 1 037 791
— — Directors' valuation - unlisted associates 63 60

* Details of the group’s interests in associates are set out in
Annexures 2 and 3 on pages 79 to 81.

* Associates held 2 197 696 (2005: 13 573) shares in
Johnnic Communications Limited at the balance sheet date.

—— ()
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for the year ended 31 March 2006

Plant, Leasehold Freehold Vehicles  Capitalised Total

furniture and  improve- land and leased
equipment ments buildings assets
GROUP Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm
14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT (continued)
PROFIT ON DISPOSALS
Proceeds 3 — — — — 3
Net book value of disposals — — — — 3
Profit (loss) on disposals 3 —_ - - &) -
. Registers.containing details of the freehold land and buildings are available for inspection at the registered offices of the
respective group companies.
* Property, plant and equipment with a net book value of R44m (2005: R40m) is encumbered as reflected in note 25.
+ Property, plant and equipment at Business Day Nigeria was subject to valuation by an independent valuer. Carrying values were
impaired in line with the valuations.
2006 2005
GROUP Rm Rm
15. GOODWILL
COST
Balance at beginning of year 268 95
Accumulated amortisation set-off — (80)
Acquisition of subsidiaries and joint venture 7 253
Exchange differences and other ) —
Balance at end of year 274 268
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION
Balance at beginning of year —_ 80
Set off against cost — (80)
Balance at end of year — —
ACCUMULATED IMPAIRMENT LOSSES
Balance at beginning of year 4 —
Impairment losses 2 4
Balance at end of year 6 4
CARRYING AMOUNT
At beginning of year ' 264 15
At end of year . 268 264

The impairment arose at CD Duplications, a cash generating unit within Compact Disc Technologies. Given the rapid changes in
the environment in which the CD Duplications business operates it was decided to obtain an independent valuation of the business.
Based on the valuation obtained the investment was impaired.

R221 million of the carrying amount is allocated to pay television and arises in connection with the acquisition of the additional
125% interests in M-Net and SuperSport in 2005, The carrying amount is reviewed with reference to value in use based on
subscriber base and programming rights assumptions which reflect past experience. Cash flows have been projected over a period
not exceeding five years using historic growth rates discounted by the group’s cost of borrowings. The carrying amounts of goodwill
in respect of other cash-generating units are not significant in comparison with the group’s total carrying amount of goodwill.
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for the year ended 31 March 2006

| @
| o
| .
i . N ’ .
Plant, Leasehold Freehold Vehicles  Capitalised Total
furniture and  improve-  land and lzased @
equipment ments b;uildings assets o
GROUP Rm Rm " Rm Rm Rm Rm ®
14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND ®
EQUIPMENT
cosT @
Balance at 31 March 2004 599 76 20 13 4 712 ()
IFRS adjustments — — | — — |
Reallocation between categories {18) 54) 1 — — 72 — ®
Balance at 31 March 2004 restated 581 22 21 13 76 713 ®
Additions at cost (note 35) 115 3 2 6 — 126 o
Disposal of subsidiaries (5) — — — — (5) o
Other disposals (28) (2) — (6) — (36)
Exchange differences — — — 0 — 0 @
Acquisition of subsidiaries o
and joint ventures N — 42 23 — 176 e
Reallocation between categories 2 — — (h (h —
Balance at 31 March 2005 776 23 65 34 75 973 :
Additions at cost (note 35) 88 3 8 8 (B 118 ®
Disposal of joint ventures (16) — — — — (16)
Other disposals (23) — — ) 3) 3N @
Exchange differences (h — — — — (H ()
Transfer to intangible assets (54) — — — — (54)
Reallocation between categories (2) — | — 2 — — .
Balance at 31 March 2006 768 26 ; 73 39 83 989 :
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ; -
Balance at 31 March 2004 436 53 ! 7 9 3 508
IFRS adjustments (26) | 0 ) (12) (44) L
Reallocation between categories 5 (48) | — — 43 — o
Balance at 31 March 2004 restated 415 6 | 4 5 34 464 o
Charge for the year 72 7 ; I 4 l 85 @
Disposal of subsidiaries (4) — —— — — )
Other disposals (27) (2) | — (5 — (34) o
Acquisition of subsidiaries \ (]
and joint ventures 80 — | e EP — 105 o
Balance at 31 March 2005 536 ] : I 23 35 616 ®
|
Charge for the year 71 2 \ | 5 4 83 @
Impairment ! — | — 2 — 3 @
Disposal of joint ventures ) — i — — — 9)
Other disposals - 23) - - ) - (28) @
Exchange differences () — - — — hH ()
Transfer to intangible assets (35) — l — — — (35) ®
Balance at 31 March 2006 540 i3 12 25 3¢9 629 ®
CARRYING AMOUNT o
At 31 March 2005 240 f2 54 [ 40 357 o
At 31 March 2006 228 13 el 14 44 360 o
@
o

I
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i3. BASIC EARNINGS AND DIVIDENDS PER ORDINARY SHARE

13.1 Basic earnings per ordinary share
The calculation of attributable and headline earnings per ordinary share is based on attributable earnings of RS 12 million (2005:
R379 miillion) and headline earnings of R506 million (2005: R376 million), and on a weighted average number of 104 014 819
(2005: 104 189 314) ordinary shares in issue during the year.

GROUP

Reconciliation between attributable 2006 2005
and headline earnings Rm Rm
Attributable earnings 512 379
Reconciling items (after taxation and minority
interests, where applicable):
Profit on disposal of operations (13) (6)
Goodwill impairment 2 4
Property, plant and equipment impairment 3 —
Loss (profit) on disposal of intangible assets ! ()
Other 1 —
Headline earnings 506 376
Basic earnings per ordinary share (cents)
Attributable 492 364
Headline 486 361
The weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year includes the
impact of the odd-lot offer effective on 10 October 2005.

13.2 Dividends per ordinary share
Dividend no. 190 paid on |9 December 2005 - 75 cents per share

(2005: no. 189 - 40 cents per share) 78 42

On 20 June 2006 the directors declared dividend no. 191 of 100 cents per share, payable on |7 July 2006. This dividend has
not been included as a liability in these financial statements and has no accompanying secondary tax on companies liability as
the company has sufficient credits (refer note 27).

In compliance with the requirements of the |SE Limited, the following are the applicable dates:

Last date to trade cum dividend Friday, 7 July 2006
Shares trade ex dividend Monday, 10 July 2006
Record date Friday, 14 July 2006

Payment date Monday, |7 July 2006

Share certificates may not be dematerialised -or rematerialised from Monday, |0 July 2006 to Friday, 14 July 2006, both days
inclusive.
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COMPANY GROUP e

2005 2006 2004 2005

Rm Rm 1 Rm Rm @
1 o
11. SHARE OF PROFITS OF ASSOCIATES
Current vear share of profits of associates i 184 148 @
Recognition of M-Net/SuperSport | L]
IAS 39 (AC 133) impact } - (21) ®
184 127
i @
12. TAXATION | @
— —_ Current taxation ‘ 216 21 ()
South African normal taxation | U]
— — - current year 210 64 e
— —_ - prior year over provisions 1 () (50)
— —_ Secondary taxation on companies } (] 3 @
— — Foreign and withholding taxation : — 4 [ )
— 3 Deferred taxation (note 27) (3 104 o
@
— 3 Current year “41) 48
— — Prior year under provisions i 53 @
— —_— Change in tax rate - 3 o
— 3 } 177 125 ()
* South African normal taxation s calc‘julated at 29% o
(2005: 30%) of the estimated taxable {nco;me for the year. ()
The closing balance on deferred taxation is calculated at 29% o
(2005: 29%). 1
* Taxation of foreign subsidiaries is calculated at the rates [}
prevailing in their respective jurisdictions. |
| o
% % Tax rate reconciliation | % % @
30,0 29,0 Taxation at the standard rate } 29,0 300 .
Tax effect of expenses which are not deductible in
(0.4) 0,2 determining taxable income | 3,8 25 (]
(1.0) — Deferred taxation not raised on assessed \oss‘es 2,3 25 ®
— (0,2) Difference due to share of profits of associates (7,6) (58)

(28,6) (29,0) Exempt income, exceptional items and capital profits (2,4) 2.4 [
— — Change in tax rate ‘ - 03 @
— — Secondary tax on companies ! 1,7 —

— 0,5 Capital gains tax \ 0,9 — @
— — Cther \ (2,3) (2.5) o
— 0,5 ‘ 25,2 246 ()
Tax losses ‘ o
Estimated assessable losses available for the | ®
8 —_ reduction of future taxable income ‘\ 84 172
| @
| @
i
| o
@
@
@

|
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COMPANY GROUP
2005 2006 2006 2005
Rm Rm Rm Rm
6. DEPRECIATION
— —_ Plant, furniture and equipment 71 72
— - Leasehold improvements 2 7
— —_ Buildings ] \
— - Vehicles 5 4
— - Capitalised leased assets 4 |
— —_ 83 85
7. AMORTISATION
— — Patents and trademarks 9 9
— - Licences 2 |
— — Publishing titles —_ 2
— —_ Computer software 7 —
— —_ Capitalised course development 2 3
— —_ 20 IS
8. EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS
(4) 19 Fair value adjustment of listed equities 36 16
— - Profit on disposal of operations 14 6
— 411 Reversal of impairments of loans to subsidiaries — —
— — Adjustment in respect of leases previously impaired - 10
(473) —_ Impairment of investment in subsidiary —_— —
() — Impairment of loan to subsidiary — —
— - Other ) (3)
(478) 430 49 79
9. FINANCE COSTS
7 2 Interest on borrowings 23 35
— — Interest on obligations under finance leases 2 2
7 2 25 37
10. FINANCE INCOME
2 10 Interest received 50 28
2 10 Bank deposits 31 2|
— - Associates i |
— —_— Other 18 6
252 184 Dividends received 2 2
161 17 Subsidiaries
3| 99 Joint ventures
58 66 Associates
2 2 Investmenits 2 2
254 194 52 30

-mai‘;m-iﬁl_u
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for the year ended 31 March 2006 i

| GROUP
} 2006 2005
{ R Rm
|
5. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS (continued) |
5.2 Geographical segments ‘
For management reporting purposes, the group is organised into ‘jﬁhree geographical
segments, namely South Africa, rest of Africa and other overseas operations.
Operations in the rest of Africa are located in Botswana, Nigeria, Ghana and Kenya.
Other overseas operations are located in Australia, New Zealand and the United
Kingdom. |
Revenue ‘\‘
South Africa 3 4 434 3904
Rest of Africa | LY (5
Other overseas operations | 162 161
| 4 65| 4080
|
Ségment Capital
assets expenditure on
! property, plant,
; equipment and
| intangible assets
2006 | 2005 2006 2005
GROUP Rm | Rm Rm Rm
Assets excluding goodwill 3991 | 3615 137 135
|
South Africa 3737 | 3471 92 102
Rest of Africa 152 | 33 43 3l
Other overseas operations 102 || (11 Z 2
|
Goodwill 268 | 264
4259 | 3879 137 135

|
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Music Africa Distribution, Pay Eliminations Sub- Disposed Group

Manufacturing Television total operations

and Support Services*

Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm
218 47 208 I 225 — 4651 — 4 651
— — (27 — (230) — — —_
218 47 335 | 225 (230) 4651 — 4651
20 (48) () 281 — 582 (3) 579
(136) — (136) — (136)
20 (48) (147) 281 — 446 (3) 443
f 5 22 ‘ 19 — 103 — 103
— 3 2 — — 5 — 5
— 43 I3 25 — I8 — 18
— 3 4 2 — 19 — 19
68 I55 2243 534 — 4259 — 4 259
51 228 370 495 — | 866 — | 866
Music Africa Distribution, Pay Eliminations Sub- Disposed Group

Manufacturing Television total operations

and Support Services*

Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm " Rm
193 15 160 [ 040 — 4079 | 4 080
— — [0 - (181) — — —
(93 [5 270 [ 040 (1814) 4079 4 080
15 (19 6 188 — 447 (12) 435
(75) — (75) — (75)
IS (19) (69) 188 — 372 (12) 360
I I 18 13 — 100 — 100
— — 2 — — 4 — 4
— 31 29 22 — 126 — 126
— — — \ — 9 — 9
70 %0 2061 542 — 3879 — 3879
94 9 373 604 — i 887 — | 887

00000800000 000000000080000008000D0EE0000RB000S
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for the year ended 3| March 2006

5. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS

5.1 Business segments |
|
Media Retail Boaks Home
and Maps Entertainment
2006 Rm Rm Rm Rm
Revenue | 565 768 312 308
Inter-segment revenue** 86 — 17 —
| 65| 768 329 308
Profit (loss) from operations before share-based l
payments and exceptional items | 244 38 25 33
Share-based payments »‘
Profit (loss) from operations before }
exceptional items | 244 38 25 33
|
Depreciation and amortisation } 24 24 7 |
lmpairment losses 1 — — — —
Capital expenditure i
— property, plant and equipment | 18 16 2
— intangible assets 4 2 4 —
Segment assets | 782 220 150 97
Segment liabilities i 446 104 121 51

* Includes corporate head office costs of R50 million and the equity investments in Caxton ancTi CTP Publishers and Printers Limited.
** Inter-segment revenue is charged on arm's length terms.

|
!

Media Retail Boolss Home
{ and Maps Entertainment
|
2005 | Rm Rm Rm Rm
Revenue | 366 710 06 309
Inter-segment revenue®* i 57 — 14 —
| 423 710 300 309
Profit (loss) from operations before share-based \‘
payments and exceptional items | 160 43 ! 33
Share-based payments |
Profit (loss) from operations before :
exceptional items | 160 43 il 33
Depreciation and amortisation 32 25 9 |
Impairment losses — — 2 —
Capital expenditure
— property, plant and equipment 19 9 5
— intangible assets I8 — - —
Segment assets ‘ 643 155 156 162
Segment liabilities 417 245 98 37

* Includes corporate head office costs of R35 million and the equity investments in Caxton and CTP Publishers and Printers Limitecl.
** |nter-segment revenue is charged on arm'’s length terms.

coouooooqooq-okpocooooqqqo-oqop-qqcpoop-ooo,




for the year ended 3| March 2006

COMPANY GROUP
2005 2006 2006 2005
Rm Rm Rm Rm
REVENUE
— — Goods sold 2 990 2 681
— —_ Services rendered 1 661 {399
— —_ 4 651 4 080
OTHER EXPENSES
Other expenses are stated after charging (crediting):
— —_— Auditors’ remuneration - group auditors 12 9
— —_ Audit fees 10 7
— — Fees for other services 2 2
— — Auditors’ remuneration - other auditors 4 3
— -— Audit fees 2 |
— — Fees for other services 2 2
— —_ Share-based payments (note 43) 136 75
— —_ Operating lease charges 114 130
— — - land and buildings 99 106
— —_ — equipment and vehicles 15 24
— — Net foreign exchange losses (profits) 4 46
— —_ — realised - 47
— —_ — unrealised 4 i
Profit on disposal of property, plant and
— —_ equipment (note 14) —_ (h
— — Property, plant and equipment impairment (note [4) 3 —
— - Charge for post-retirement benefits I3 \
— —_— Retirement benefit plan contributions (note 40) 52 49
— —_ ~ defined contribution plans 51 48
— — — defined benefit plan I |
— — Staff costs 908 783
— —_ Research and development costs 8 7

e 71 §2
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Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, demand
deposits, and other short-term highly liquid investments which are
readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash and cash equivalents
are measured at fair value at initial recognition, with any changes in
fair value being recognised in profit or loss.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Bank borrowings
Interest-bearing bank loans and overdrafts are measured at fair
value,

Trade payables

Trade payables are measured at fair value.

Forward exchange contracts.

Forward exchange contracts are initially measured at fair value at
the contract date, and are remeasured to fair value at subsequent
reporting dates, with gains and losses arising from changes in fair
value being recognised in profit or loss.

Derivatives and hedges

Derivative financial instruments are initially recorded at cost and
subsequently remeasured at fair value. The method of recognising
the resulting gain or loss is dependent on the nature of the item
being hedged. Derivatives are designated as either a hedge of the
fair value of a recognised asset or liability (fair value hedge) or a
hedge of a forecasted transaction or a firm commitment (cash flow
hedge). Changes in the fair value of derivatives which are
designated and qualify as fair value hedges, and which are highly
effective, are recognised in profit or loss, along with any changes in
the fair value of the hedged asset or liability attributable to the
hedged risk. Changes in the fair value of derivatives which are
designated and qualify as cash flow hedges and which are highly
effective, are recognised in equity. Where the forecasted transaction
or firm commitment results in the recognition of an asset or liability,
the gains and losses previously recognised in equity are transferred
from equity and included in the initial measurement of the cost of
the asset or liability. When a hedging instrument expires or is sold,
or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting,
any gain or loss previously recognised in equity is recognised in
profit or loss. At the inception of transactions the relationship
between the hedging instruments and the hedged items, as well as
the risk management objective and strategy, is documented. This
process includes linking all derivatives designated as hedges to
specific assets and liabilities or to specific forecasted transactions or
firm commitments. The assessment as to whether the derivatives
used are highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash
flows of hedged items is regularly reviewed.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in other financial instruments, such as third
currency commitments, are treated as separate derivatives when
their risks and characteristics are not closely related to those of the
host contract.

|
1
|
i
i
|

Provisiohs

Prowswons are recognised when there is a present obligation as a
result ofwa past event, and it is probable that the obligation will need
to be s}e‘ttled. Provisions are measured at the directors’ best
estimate; of the expenditure required to se’tle the obligation at the
balance sheet date, and are present valuzd where the effect of
dlscountmg is material,

Share-;based payments

Share-based payments are issued to certair employees,
|

Equity«séttled share-based payments are measured at fair value
(excludm‘g the effect of non market-based vasting conditions) at the
date of‘grant The fair value determined at the grant date is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on
the estlmate of the shares which will evertually vest and adjusted

for the effect of non market-based vesting conditions.

\ s
For cash—settled share-based payments, & liability equal to the
portion \Of the services received is recognized at fair value at each

balance sheet date.

1
judgements made by management
In applymg the group’s accounting policies, the following significant
Judgeme‘nts have been made:
Deferred taxation assets
Deferred taxation assets are recognised o the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be availabl: in future against which
the deferred taxation assets can be utilised. The future availability of
taxable ‘proﬂts is based on management’s judgments regarding
future blj.ISiHESS plans.
Asset Ii\les and residual values
Property‘ (other than land), plant and equipient are depreciated to
their resi;dual values over their expected useful lives. Residual values
and asset lives are assessed annually bised on management'’s
Judgment of relevant factors and condition:.

Impairn}vent of tangible and intangible assets

At least at each balance sheet date, the carrving amounts of tangible
and intangble assets are reviewed to determine whether there is
any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss.
Managen‘went takes into account various zonsiderations including
future c;jash flows expected to be generated by the assets under
review, }

i
Sources of estimation uncertainty
Valuatlon of post-retirement medical aid benefits
The actuarial valuation of post-retirement medical aid benefits is
based o estimations including discount retes and healthcare cost
inflation ;rates‘

Valuatioln of share-based payments liabilities

The va\ua‘mon models used to value the share-based payments
Iwab|||t|es‘mc|ude estimations as to expectaed option life, volatility,
dividend'yield and risk-free rate,
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The following life spans were used during the year to amortise
intangible assets:

Patents and trademarks

10 - 20 years
Licences 3 -5 years
Publishing titles 10 - 15 years
Computer software 3 -5 years
Capitalised course development 10 - 15 years
Other deferred expenditures 5 - 8 years

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill

At least at each balance sheet date the carrying amounts of tangible
and intangible assets are assessed to determine whether there is
any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. f
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of any impairment loss.
Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs is estimated.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate which reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset {or cash-generating unit) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount. but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
which would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value,
Cost comprises direct materials and, where applicable, direct labour
costs and those overheads which have been incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.  Cost is
calculated using the weighted average method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price less all estimated costs of
completion and costs to be incurred in marketing, selling and
distribution. Write-downs to net realisable value are recognised in
profit or loss.

Programme and film rights

Programme and film rights are recorded at ruling exchange rates at
the dates on which the rights come into licence. The rights are
expensed based on contracted screenings and where management
has confirmed that no further screenings will occur  Rights

contracted at year-end but not yet in licence are disclosed as
commitments. '

Sports events rights

Sports events rights are recorded at ruling exchange rates at the
dates on which sports events commence. The rights are expensed
over the periods of the sports events and where management has
confirmed that the events will not be screened. Rights contracted
at yearend for sports events which have not yet commenced are
disclosed as commitments.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the
group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are measured at initial recognition at fair vaiue,
and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method. Appropriate allowances for
estimated irrecoverable amounts are recognised in profit or loss
when there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired. The
allowance recognised is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows discounted at the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition.

Music, film and video contract advances

Music contract advances are written off on payment or release of
the product, whichever is the earlier Film and video contract
advances are written off on first release of the relevant product.

Investments

Investments, including those in subsidiaries, are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis where the purchase or sale of
an investment is under a contract whose terms require delivery of
the investment within the timeframe established by the market
concerned, and are initially measured at fair value plus directly
attributable transaction costs.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is
objective evidence that the investment is impaired, and is measured
as the difference between the investment's carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the
effective interest rate computed at inftial recognition. Impairment
losses are reversed in subsequent periods when an increase in the
investment's recoverable amount can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, subject to the
restriction that the carrying amount of the investment at the date
the impairment is reversed shall not exceed what the amortised
cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Investments classified as financial assets at fair value thorough profit
or loss are measured at subsequent reporting dates at fair value,
with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value being
recognised in profit or loss. On disposal, the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount is recognised in
profit or loss.
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or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are
recognised as an expense as they fall due.

For defined benefit retirement benefit plans. the cost of providing
benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method, with
independent actuarial valuations being carried out at three-yearly
intervals by independent actuaries.

Post-retirement benefits

The group's post-retirement benefits are valued annually by
independent actuaries, with any gains and losses being recognised in
profit or loss.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the income
statement because it excludes items of income or expense which
are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes
items which are never taxable or deductible. The liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates which have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit,
and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction
which affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all
or part of the asset to be recovered,

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates which are expected to
apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset realised.
Deferred tax is charged or credited to profit or loss, except when
it relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, in which

|
case the deferred tax is also dealt with in 2quity.
I

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offsct when there is a legally
enforce:able right to set off current tax zssets against current tax
liabilities when they relate to income tixes levied by the same
taxation authority and the group intends to settle its current tax
assets a“nd liabilities on a net basis.
Propérty, plant and equipment:
Proper*éy, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairrnent losses. Land is not
depreciated

|
Propert‘ies in the course of construction for production, rental or
administrative purposes, or for purposes not yet determined, are
carried 3‘\a‘c cost, less any recognised impairment loss. Cost includes
professi:ona! fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs
capitalised in accordance with the group's accounting policy.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same: basis as other property
assets, commences when the assets are ready for their intended

use. |

i
Deprec‘iation is charged so as to write off the cost of property, plant
and equipment other than land, to their astimated residual values
over théir estimated useful lives.

|
Assets held under finance leases and leaszhold improvements are
depreciéted to their estimated residual values over their expected
useful Ii\“/es or, where shorter, the term of the relevant lease.

|
Where significant parts of an item have different useful lives to the
item itself, these parts are depreciated over their own estimated

useful IiYes.

Useful ‘!ives, residual values and methcds of depreciation are
reviewed annually.

The {oui‘owing life spans were used during the year to depreciate
property, plant and equipmant to estimated residual values:

Plant, fu}niture and equipment 3 - 20 years
Leasehold improvements 3 - 10 years
Buildings 5 - 50 years
\/ehicles; 3 -5 years

\
The gain or loss arising on the disposal or scrapping of an item of
property, plant and equipment is recognise:d in profit or loss.

Intangible assets other than goodwill

Intangible assets other than goodwill are racognised initially at cost
if acquir{ed separately, and at fair value if acquired as part of a
business combination. If assessed as having an indefinite useful life,
the intangible asset is not amortised, but is tested for impairment
annuallyland impaired if required, If assessed as having a finite useful
life, it is: amortised over its estimated usaful life, and tested for
‘\mpairmient if there is an indication that an impairment is required,

| L ‘
Costs 10 develop publishing titles internally are recognised in profit
or loss. |

|

|
|
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The group’s policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of an
associate is described under ‘Interests in associates' above.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale
if their carrying amount will be recovered through a sale transaction
rather than through continuing use. The condition is regarded as
met only when the sale is highly probable and the asset (or disposal
group) is available for immediate sale in its present condition.
Management must be committed to the sale, which should be
expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one
year from the date of classification.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held for sale
are measured at the lower of the assets’ previous carrying amount
or fair value less costs to sell, and are not depreciated.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods and
services provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts
and sales related taxes.

The sale of goods is recognised when the goods are delivered and
title has passed. The rendering of services is recognised as the
service is provided.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and the interest rate applicable, which is the
rate which discounts estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that assets net carrying
amount.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholder’s right to receive payment has been established.

Revenue from royalties is recognised on an accrual basis in terms of
the relevant royalty agreement.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets at their fair
value at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present value
of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the
lessor is included in the balance sheet as a finance lease obligation.
Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and
reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are
charged to profit or loss, unless they are directly attributable to
qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalised in accordance
with the group's general policy on borrowing costs (see below).

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease, or on
another basis if more representative of the time pattern of the

user's benefit. Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to
enter into an operating lease are spread on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease, or on another basis if
more representative of the term pattern of the user's benefit.

Foreign currencies

The individual financial statements of each group entity are
presented in the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (its functional currency). For the purpose
of the consolidated financial statements, the results and financial
position of each entity are expressed in South African rands, which
is the functional currency of the company, and the presentation
currency for the consolidated financial statements.

In preparing the financial statements of the individual entities,
transactions in currencies other than the entity's functional currency
are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
ruling at the balance sheet date. Non-monetary items carried at fair
value which are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items which are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are included in profit or
loss for the period. Exchange differences arising on the retransiation
of non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in ‘profit or
loss for the period except for differences arising on the retranslation
of non-monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are
recognised directly in equity.  For such non-monetary items, any
exchange component of that gain or loss is also recognised directly
in equity.

In order to mitigate its exposure to certain foreign exchange risks,
the group enters into forward exchange contracts (see below for
details of the group's accounting policies in respect of such financial
instruments). ‘

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial statements, the
assets and liabilities of the group's foreign operations are expressed
in South African Rand using exchange rates prevailing at the balance
sheet date. Income and expense items are translated at the average
exchange rates for the period. Exchange differences arising are
classified as equity and transferred to the group’s foreign currency
translation reserve. Such translation differences are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which the foreign operation is
disposed of.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a
foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the closing rate.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
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incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued by the group in
exchange for control of the acquiree, plus any costs directly
aftributable to the business combination. The acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities which meet the conditions
for recognition under IFRS 3 are recognised at their fair values at the
acquisition date, except for non-current assets (or disposal groups)
which are classified as held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5, which
are recognised and measured at fair value less costs to sell.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset and initially
measured at cost, being the excess of the cost of the business
combination over the group's interest in the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised, H,
after reassessment, the group’s interest in the net fair value of the
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
exceeds the cost of the business combination, the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The interest of minority shareholders in the acquiree is measured
at the minority’s proportion of the net fair value of the assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised.

Interests in associates

An associate is an entity over which the group has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a joint
venture. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy. decisions of the investee but is not
control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated
in these financial statements using the equity method of accounting,
except when the investment is classified as held for sale, in which
case it is accounted for under IFRS 5, Under the equity method,
investments in associates are carried in the consolidated balance
sheet at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the group's
share of the net assets of the associate, less any impairment in the
value of individual investments. Losses of an associate in excess of
the group’s interest in that associate (which includes any long-term
interests which, in substance, form part of the group’s net
investment in the associate) are not recognised.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the group’s share of the
et fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities of the associate recognised at the date of acquisition is
recognised as goodwill. The goodwill is included within the carrying
amount of the investment and is assessed for impairment as part of
the investment. Any excess of the group’s share of the net fair value
of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the
cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the group,
profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the group's
interest in the relevant associate.

Interests in joint ventures

A joint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby the group
and other parties undertake an economic activity which is subject
to joint control, that is when the strategic financial and operating

i
policy decisions relating to the activities require the unanimous
consenjt of the parties sharing control.
\

\/\/herei a group entity undertakes its activities under joint venture
arrangements directly, the group's share of jointly controlled assets
and anQ liabilities incurred jointly with othe = ventures are recognised
in the lfinancial statements of the relevant entity and classified
accordihg to their nature. Liabilities and expenses incurred directly
in respéd of interests in jointly controlled assets are accounted for
on an accrual basis. Income from the sale or use of the group’s
share ofthe output of jointly controlled assets, and its share of joint
venturé expenses, are recognised when it is probable that the
econorﬁic benefits associated with the transactions will flow to/from
the group and their amourt can be measired reliably.

Joint venture arrangements which involva the establishment of a
separate entity in which each venturer has an interest are referred
to as jointly controlied entities. The group reports its interests in
jointly &ontrolled entities using proportionate consolidation, except
when tl;we investrent is classified as held for sale, in which case it is
accounted for under IFRS 5. The group’s share of the assets,
\iabilitiejs, income and expenses of joinily controlled entities is
combinbd with the equivalent items in the consolidated financial
stateménts on a line-by-line basis.
\

Any gobdwill arising on the acquisition of the group’s interest in a
L i Lo . ‘

jointly controlled entity is accounted for in accordance with the
group'sjaccounting policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of a

subsidiary (see below).

Where!| the group transacts with its jointly controlled entities,
unrealised profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the
group’slinterest in the joint venture.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of & subsidiary or a jointly
controlljed entity represents the excess of the cost of acquisition
over the group's interest in the net fair value of the identifiable
assets, \iabilities and contingent liabilities of the subsidiary or jointly
controlled entity recognised at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is

initially ‘recognised as an asset at cost and is subsequently measured

at cost?less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is not
amortised,

|
For the|purpose of impairment testing, goadwill is allocated to each
of the éroup‘s cash-generating units experted to benefit from the
synergiés of the combination. Cash-generating units to which
goodwilll has been allocated are tested fo; impairment annually, or
more frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be
impaire‘d. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is
less thal’\ its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of any goouwill allocated to the unit
and thein to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is rot reversed in a subsequent period.

\
On disﬁ)osa\ of a subsidiary or a jointy controlled entity, the
attributable amount of goodwill is includec in the determination of

|
the proﬁt or loss on disposal.
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I. PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

These financial statements are presented in South African rands
since that is the functional currency of the company and the
presentation currency for the group financial statements.

In the current vear, the group has adopted all of the new and
revised Standards and Interpretations issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and the International Financial
Reporting Interpretations Committee (FRIC) of the IASB that are
relevant to its operations and effective for accounting periods
beginning on | April 2005. The adoption of these new and revised
Standards and Interpretations has resulted in changes to the group's
accounting policies in the following areas:

* IFRS 2 Share-based Payment
* IAS 6 Property, Plant and Equipment
* IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.

The impact of these changes in accounting policies is discussed in
detaif fater in this note,

As these financial statements include comparatives for one vear, the
date of transition to IFRS is | April 2004, which is the start of the
earliest period of comparative information presented.

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the
following relevant Standards and Interpretations were in issue but
not yet effective;

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

IFRIC 4 Determines whether an arrangement contains a lease

IFRIC 8 Clarifies the treatment of black economic empowerment
transactions within the scope of IFRS 2

IFRIC 9 Re-assesses embedded derivatives.

The directors anticipate that adoption of these Standards and
Interpretations in future periods will have no material impact on the
financial statements of the group.

IFRS 2 Share-based Payment

IFRS 2 Share-based Payment requires the recognition of equity-
settled share-based payments at fair value at the date of grant, and
the recognition of cash-settled share-based payments at fair value at
each reporting date. Prior to the adoption of (FRS 2, cash-settled
share-based payments were recognised to the extent that they had
vested, and were disclosed as contingent liabilities to the extent that
they had not yet vested.

IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment

IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment requires a components
approach to depreciation, and an annual review of residual values
and useful lives of assets. This impacts the depreciation charged to
the income statement.

IAS 39 Financial instruments: Recognition and
Measurement
In accordance with the transitional provisions of I1AS 39, in terms of

which a previously recognised financial instrument may be
redesignated as a financial asset or financial liability at fair value
through profit or loss, the company's investment in MTN was
redesignated from available-for-sale to a financial asset at fair value
through profit or loss.

In accordance with IFRS 1, cumulative translation differences which
arose on the translation of foreign operations were deemed to be
zero at the date of transition to IFRS. The gain or loss on
subsequent disposal of a foreign operation shall exclude translation
differences which arose before the date of transition to IFRS, but
shall include later translation differences.

The effects of these changes on the annual financial statements are
detailed in note 44.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards on the historical cost
basis, except for the revaluation of certain financial instruments,

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated group financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of Johnnic Communications Limited and entities
(including special purpose entities) controlled by the company (its
subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the company has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so
as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year
are included in the consolidated group income statement from the
effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal,
as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with those
used by other members of the group.

All intra-group transactions and balances are eliminated on
consolidation.

The company carries its investments in subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries are
identified separately from the group’s equity therein. Minority
interests consist of the amount of those interests at the date of the
original business combination (see below) and the minority's share
of changes in equity since the date of the combination. Losses
applicable to the minority in excess of the minority's interest in the
subsidiary's equity are allocated against the interests of the group
except to the extent that the minority has a binding obligation and
is able to make an additional investment to cover the losses.

Business combinations

The acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted for using the purchase
method. The cost of the acquisition is measured at the aggregate of
the fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities
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Interest of

Johnnic
Communications
Share Share Other  Accumulated Limited
capital premium reserves profits shareholders
COMPANY Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm
Balance at 31 March 2004 10 814 96 496 t416
IFRS restatements (96) 96 —
Balance at 31 March 2004 restated 10 814 — 592 | 416
Attributable loss for the year W234) (234)J
Total expense recognised for the year (234) (234)
Dividends on ordinary shares ‘ (42) (42)
Balance at 31 March 2005 10 814 “ — 3i6 1 140
Attributable earnings for the year IE 613 ]
Total income recognised for the year 613 613
Dividends on ordinary shares (78) (78)
Shares cancelled on implementation
of odd-lot offer (19) (19)
Issue of share capital I i I
Balance at 31 March 2006 t0 796 : —_ 851 1 657
Notes 23 23 ‘ 24

I N
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Interest of

Johnnic
Communications

Share Share Other Accumulated Limited Minority Total

capital premium reserves profits shareholders  interest equity
GROUP Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm
Balance at 31 March 2004 1o 814 678 124 | 626 28 | 654
IFRS and other restatements (667) 661 (6) 4 (2)
Balance at 31 March 2004 restated 10 814 I 785 | 620 32 | 652
Net exchange difference arising on
transiation of foreign entities (3) (3) (3)
Adjustment to carrying value of associate 4) 4 {4
Funding introduced 5 5
Income and expense recognised directly
in equity ®) ) Q) 5 ()
Attributable earnings for the year 379 379 5 384
Total income and expense recognised
for the year (3) 375 372 10 382
Dividends on ordinary shares (42) (42) (42)
Balance at 31 March 2005 10 814 8 1118 1 950 42 1992
Net exchange difference arising on

translation of foreign entities (3) (3) (3)

Net transfers between reserves 4 (4 —
Hedging profits 8 8 8
Adjustment to carrying value of associate 3hH (3 - (3D
Funding withdrawn (3) (3)
Income and expense recognised directly ‘
in equity 9 (35) (26) 3) 29)
Attributable earnings for the year 512 512 14 526
Total income and expense recognised
for the year 9 477 486 1 497
Dividends on ordinary shares (78) (78) (78)
Shares cancelled on implementation
of odd-lot offer (19) (19) (19)
Issue of share capital \ | I
Balance at 31 March 2006 10 796 17 1517 2 340 53 2393
Notes 23 23 24
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COMPANY | GROUP

2005 2006 Notes 2004 2005
Rm Rm ' Rm " Rm
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
(2) {6) Net cash generated by (used in) operations 31 531 426
(7) (2) Finance costs 27) (37)
2 10 Finance income L1¢ 28
(h (1)  Taxation paid (193) (112)
(8) i Net cash from (used in) .operating activitiés 36 305
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

21 184 income from investments 32 70 60
— — Finance income - 2
— — Acquisition of investments 33 — (6)
73 — Praceeds on disposal of investments 33 3z 73
— —  Acquisition of property, plant and equipment 35 (118) (126)
— — | —to maintain operations (73) (56)
— — | —'to expand operations (4%) (70)
— —_— Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment 14 3 2
— —  Acquisition of intangible assets ‘ (19) (%)
— — Proceeds on disposal of intangible assets 1 —
— —_ Disposal of interests in joint ventures 33 35 —
(287) —  Acquisition of interests in joint ventures 33 —_ (225)

— 20 Proceeds from capital reduction in joint venture
— 37 Repayment of loan by joint venture

— —  Proceeds on disposal of associates 33 —_ 2
— — Net decrease in loans to associates 33 2 —
— —_— Acquisition of minority interests in subsidiaries 33 %) —
— —_ Acquisition of subsidiaries 34 (2) (68)
— —_ Disposal of subsidiaries 34 —_ 7
— —_— Net increase in long-term receivables and loans i 3) (4)
(123) 24} Net cash (used in) from investing activities? (8) (292)
| -
|
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
(17) 234 Net increase (decrease) in borrowings 8 19
— —_ Funding received from outside shareholders 2 —
— I Proceeds from odd-lot offer | —
— (3) Payment to shareholders pursuant to odd-lot offe 3) —
— (2) Costs related to odd-lot offer 2) —
(42) (78)  Dividend paid i (78) (42)
(59) 152 Net cash (used in) from financing activities (72) (23)
(190) 394 Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash ehuivalents 288 (10)
179 (11)  Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 335 345
Foreign operations translation adjustment ‘ (1) —
(an 383 Cash and cash equivalents at end of year ‘\ 36 622 335




as at 31 March 2006

COMPANY GROUP

2005% 2006 Notes 2006 2005*
Rm Rm Rm Rm
ASSETS
Non-current assets
— —_ Property, plant and equipment 14 360 357
Goodwill 15 268 264
— ~=  Other intangible assets 16 tio 106
| 052 1 164 Interests in subsidiaries and joint ventures |7
88 88 Interests in associates 18 1 034 950
— — Investments 19 i 2
— -_— Deferred taxation assets 27 147 |44
— — Long-term receivables 23 24
— —_— Embedded derivatives 21 20
140 I 252 Total non-current assets i 964 | 867
48 451 Current assets 2295 2012
— — Inventories 20 508 547
— i Trade and other receivables 21 991 887
— — | Taxation prepaid 34 19
48 67 Listed equities 22 109 105
— 383 Bank balances, deposits and cash ‘ 653 . 454
| 188 I 703 Total assets 4 259 3879

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Capital and reserves

824 806 Share capital and premium 23 806 824

— —  Other reserves 24 17 8

316 851 Accumulated profits {517 [ 118
interest of Jjohnnic Communications Limited

[ 140 I 657 shareholders 2 340 [ 950

Minority interest 53 42

| 140 1 657  Total equity 2393 | 992

— 3 Non-current liabilities 405 373

— — | Long-term borrowings 25 19 15

— — Post-retirement benefits liabilities 26 134 (23

— —_ Operating leases equalisation liabilities 105 i3

— - | Share-based payments liabilities 43 122 59

— 3 Deferred taxation liabilities 27 25 63

48 43 Current liabilities ] 461 1514

| — | Trade and other payables 28 1 248 | 265

— —_ Provisions 29 22 32

— 16 Liability for odd-lot offer payments to shareholders 16 —

— — | Taxation liabilities 71 33

47 27 Bank overdrafts and other short-term borrowings 25 104 |84

| 188 i 703 Total equity and liabilities 4259 3879

* Restated - refer note 44
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COMPANY GROUP
2005* 2006 Notes 2004 2005*
Rm Rm Rm Rm
— —_ Revenue 3 4 651 4080 -
— —_ Cost of sales ; (2819 (2 490)
— —  Gross profit | | 832 | 590
3) (6) Other expenses ‘ 4 (1 389) (1 230)
— — | Depreciation i 6 (83) (85)
— — | Amortisation | 7 (20) (15)
Goodwill impairment ‘ 15 (2) (4)
— —_ Share-based payments | 4 (136) (75)
(3) {6)| Other (1 148) (rosh)
Profit (loss) from operations before
(3) {(6) exceptional items 443 360
(478} 430 Exceptional items 8 49 29
481y . 424 Profit (loss) from operaticns 492 389
247 192 Net finance income {costs) 27 (7)
(7) {2)| Finance costs 9 (25) (37)
254 194 Finance income 10 52 30
Share of profits of associates i i i84 127
(234) 616 Profit (loss) before taxation 703 509
— (3) Taxation | 12 a7 (125)
(234) 613 Profit (loss) for the year 526 384
Attributable to:
(234 63 Johnnic Communications Limited shareholders 5§2 379
— — Minority interest 14 5

|
(234) 613 | 526 384
\

Basic earnings per ordinary share {cents) I3 492 364

* Restated - refer note 44

I




EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’ EQUITY COMPENSATION BENEFITS:
JOHNNIC COMMUNICATIONS SHARE INCENTIVE SCHEME (continued)

Director Balance of Number of Date of Number of Balance of Number of |Allocation Exercise
share options share options | allocation | share options | share options |share options price date

as at allocated relinquished as at

| April 2005 | during the year during the year | 31 March 2006 R

P C Desai 331 220 77 050 |1 July 2005 408 270 3750 135,00 3 Jan 2003
' 6 250 135,00 3 Jan 2004
20 000 11,90 | ] May 2004
20 000 11,90 | May 2005
20 000 (150 [ May 2006
40 000 11,50 | May 2007
22 424 14.69 I July 2005
22 424 14.69 [ Juty 2006
22 424 14,69 [ July 2007
44 848 14,69 I July 2008
21 820 24,00 I July 2006
21 820 24,00 | July 2007
21 820 24,00 | July 2008
43 640 24,00 I july 2009
15410 37.00 [ July 2007
i5410 37,00 | July 2008
15410 37,00 I July 2009
30 820 3700 | July 2010
H Benatar 44 140 {5580 | | July 2005 59 720 4652 14,69 | July 2005
4652 14,69 I July 2006
4652 14,65 I July 2007
9 304 14,69 | July 2008
4176 24,00 I July 2006
4176 24,00 I July 2007
4176 24,00 i July 2008
8 352 2400 I July 2009
3116 3700 I July 2007
3116 37,00 [ July 2008
3116 37,00 I July 2009
6232 37,00 I July 2010

P ™ Jenkins 245 250 245 250 —

+ The share options allocated at prices of R135,00 and R90,00 were allocated prior to the unbundiing of MTN Group Limited. Accordingly, each of

these options qualifies for 5,3 MTN Group Limited shares and one Johnnic Communications Limited share at the allocation price.

*  Mr Molusi relinquished 53 256 share options for a cash bonus of R3 071 466,
+ M Jenkins relinquished 245 250 share options on termination of his employment as an executive director for a cash bonus of R8 019 000.
*  The cash bonuses paid were equal in value to the gain if the share options were exercised.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’ FEES (continued)

2006 Board Committee Special Total
fees | fees services fees

Director R ; R R R
M E Ramano 150 000 } 142 286 122 080 414 366
C B Brayshaw ) 76 000 | 129 055 205 055
P M Jenkins 25 500 ‘ 28 137 53 637
D ™ Mashabela 81 000 | 224 455 10 000 315 455
W S Moutloatse 71 000 ‘ 125 855 196 855
T R A Oliphant 71 000 | 38 800 109 800
K C Ramon* 71000 | 57 200 128 200
T A Wixley 81 000 ‘ 277 579 358579

626 500 | I 023 367 132 080 1 781 947

These fees were paid to Johnnic Holdings Limited. 1

+ In addition to board fees, the chairperson also received R122 080 (2005: R122 OéO) for special services. The proposed fee increase for the
chairperson’s special services are included in the notice of annual general meeting set lout on pages 84 to 86, for approval by the shareholders.

«  Committee fees include payments effective from 17 fanuary 2005 in respect of the restructuring oversight committee.

i
2005 Board } Committee Special Total
fees ~\ fees services fees
Director R | R R R
M E Ramano 120 000 } 81 100 122 080 323 180
C B Brayshaw 56 000 | 65 000 121 000
D M Mashabela 61 000 | 65 500 126 500
W S Moutloatse 51000 | 43000 94 000
T R A Oliphant 61 000 \ 32 700 93 700
K C Ramon* 66 000 | 43 000 109 000
T AWixley 66 000 ! 98 200 164 200
J R D Modise* 36 000 ‘ 25 000 61 000
517000 | 453 500 122 080 I 092 580

* These fees were paid to Johnnic Holdings Limited. ‘
|
|
i
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’ EQUITY COMPENSATION BENEFITS:!
JOHNNIC COMMUNICATIONS SHARE INCENTIVE SCHEME |

|

Director Balance of Number of Date of Number of i Balance of Number of |Allocation Exercise
share options share options | allocation share options shhre options | share options price date
as at allocated relinquished | as at

| April 2005 | during the year during the year | 31 March 2006 R
A C G Molusi 353480 77 190 |1 July 2005 53 256 | 377 414 12 400 90,00 | } April 2006
20 000 1190 | | May 2006
| 40 000 190 | 1 May 2007
| 26 956 1469 | 1 July 2006
{ 26 956 14,69 | July 2007
| 53912 1469 | 1 July 2008
| 24 000 24,00 I july 2006
24 000 24,00 I July 2007
24 000 24,00 I July 2008
48 000 24,00 | July 2009
I5438 37,00 I July 2007
15438 37,00 | July 2008
15438 37,00 I July 2009
30 876 37,00 [ July 2010




EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

2006 Salary  Retirement Other Bonuses Sub-total Share  Separation Total
and medical benefits options payment
benefits relinquished
Director R R R R R R R R
A C G Molusi | 772926 221082 57718 2380933 4 532 659 3071 466 7 604 125
P C Desai I 631 590 233 305 16774 2007 068 3988737 3 988 737
H Benatar 835 177 99 645 313116 | 247 938 | 247 938
P M Jenkins 646 894 131 626 54 000 | 003 458 | 835978 8 019 000 2122 308 11 977 286
N Jacobsohn 547 984 547 984 547 984
4 886 587 685 658 328492 6252559 12153296 ['1 090 466 2122 308 25 366 070
2005 Salary  Retirement Other Bonuses Sub-total Share  Separation Total
and medical benefits options Payment
benefits relinquished
Director R R R R R R R R
A C G Molusi | 630 098 202 300 205 371 | 388 333 3426 102 2 343980 5 770 082
P C Desai | 491 056 217 023 155319 I 039 005 2902 403 | 666 425 4 568 828
P M Jenkins 1202 760 253 187 121 878 745 618 2323 443 2 323 443
N Jacobschn 983615 212712 173 585 545 357 1 915 269 9 968 868 I 369 961 13 254 098
5307 529 885 222 656 153 3718313 10 567 217 13979273 | 369 961 25 916 451

* Other benefits include car allowances.
* The executive directors do not receive fees as directors.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’ FEES

Non-executive directors' fees consist of a retainer and an attendance fee for board and committee meetings, as follows:

Chairperson Non-executive directors
R R

Board
Annual retainer 75 000 31 000
Attendance fee 7 500 5 000
Audit committee
Annual retainer 29 000 20 000
Attendance fee 5000 4 000
Remuneration committee
Annual retainer 25 000 15 000
Attendance fee 4000 3400
Investment and restructuring committee
Annual retainer 25 000 15 000
Attendance fee 4 000 3400
Nominations committee
Annual retainer 25 000 15 000
Attendance fee 4000 3400

* The 2006 fees remain unchanged from 2005,

0800000000000 000000000000000000000000000000
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A summary of the SARS, LTIP and DBP is set out below:

SARS:  Selected employees will receive annual grants of share
appreciation rights, which are rights to receive shares equal to the value
of the difference between the exercise price and the grant price less
income tax payable on such difference, Vesting is subject to a
performance condition determined by the board. The performance
condition to be imposed for the initial grant on | July 2006 is a headline
earnings per share condition over a three-year performance pericd.
Retesting of the performance condition is permitted on the first and
second anniversaries of the end of the performance period. Upon
exercise, the company will settle the value of the difference between the

exercise price and the grant price (less income tax) by delivering shares.

LTIP:  Selected employees will receive annual grants of conditional
awards. Vesting is subject to performance conditions set by the board at
its discretion. The performance condition to be imposed for the initial
grant on | July 2006 is a total shareholder return condition over a three-
year performance period. No retesting of the performance condition is
allowed. Upon exercise, the company will procure the delivery of shares
to settle the value of the conditional award. Conditional awards which

do not vest at the end of the three-year performance period lapse.

DBP: Selected employees will be permitted to use a portion of their
after-tax annual bonus to acquire pledged shares. A matching award will
be made to the participant after a three-year pledge period on the
condition that the participant remains in the employ of any participating
group company and retains the pledged shares over the period. The
participant remains the full owner of the pledged shares for the duration
of the pledge period and enjoys all shareholder rights in respect of the
pledged shares. Pledged shares can be withdrawn from the escrow

agreement at any stage, but the matching award is then forfeited.

There are specific provisions governing retirement, retrenchment, ill
health, resignation and death for the SARS, LTIP and DBPR

Non-executive directors are currently not eligible to participate in any of
the company’s share incentive arrangements. Their fees consist of a

retainer and an attendance fee for board and committee meetings.

The remuneration committee obtained a recommendation for
remunerating the non-executive directors who serve on the
restructuring oversight committee. This remuneration was approved by
shareholders at the annual general meeting held on 22 September 2005.
The remuneration committee has also obtained a recommendation for
remunerating non-executive directors for their overall duties. These

proposed fees have been included in the notice of annual gereral

meeting set out on pages 84 to 86, for approval by shareholders.

o ! ,
Executive directors do not have fixed-term service contracts, nor does

their term of employment include notice periods in excess of |2 months.

The rem‘uneration committee reviewed the employment contracts of
the execbtive directors and approved an amendment relating to a

change in contrel. In this instance, either th: company or the executive
. | o . .
director may give six months written notice to the other party at any

time during the period commencing on the date of a change in control

|
and expir;ing six calendar months thereafter. Termination of employment

in this circumstance will result in the executive director being paid the
greater of one year's total cost to company and two weeks' total cost to

! .
company‘ for each year of completed service, plus accumulated annual

leave, a pro-rata performance bonus and all outstanding share incentives.
i

| . . .
Attendance at remuneration committee meetings:
\

|
NAME,

01.04.05
12.05.05%
21.06.05
23.06.05%
28.07.05
23.11.05
09.03.06
27.03.06"

CB Bra‘yshaw

(chairpejrson)

B}
-
B
o
o
o
o
)

T R A QOliphant P P P P P P P P
M E Ramano Pl P

T A Wixley PlPlP|P|P

P- Present! A - Apologies ## - Continuation meeting
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The salient responsibilities of the remuneration committee, as

contained in its mandate, are to:

*+ determine the company's remuneration philosophy and policy for
executive and senior management. Remuneration for executive
directors and senior management is agreed after reviews against

industry surveys and performance;

» determine a suitable performance appraisal system for executive

directors and senior management;

* review and recommend suftable share incentive schemes for

executive directors and senior management;

+ recommend to the board non-executive directors’ fees for
approval by shareholders. The responsibilities and fees for these
directors at both board and committee level are benchmarked
against the market, and changes are recommended to the board

for consideration and final approval by shareholders; and

+ recommend and implement evaluation processes for the board,

directors and board committees.

The group chief executive officer and deputy group chief executive
officer attend meetings of this committee but are recused during
discussions and decisions regarding their own remuneration and
benefits.  Other members of executive management attend as

appropriate.

The current remuneration for executive directors and senior
management is competitive and aimed at attracting, retaining and
rewarding executives for their skills and experience which they use
to direct and manage the group’s local and international activities.
Remuneration is reviewed annually with reference to industry and
general surveys and the individual performance of directors and
senior management against their pre-determined objectives.

At least two meetings of the remuneration committee are held
annually,. One meeting focuses on annual salary increases and the
other on approving bonus payments and share option allocations.
During the year the remuneration committee held numerous
additional meetings to review proposals for new long-term incentive
plans for executive directors and senior management, taking into
account local and international trends to attract and retain the

required calibre of executive and senior management.

There are three components to executive remuneration. The

guaranteed portion of remuneration comprises annual salary and

benefits. Variable remuneration consists of a performance bonus
linked to financial and operational objectives which are set and
agreed upon at the beginning of the financial year. The financial and
operational weightings reflect both group and individual objectives,
These bonuses are based on the scope of responsibility and
individual contributions made.  The long-term performance
component comprises various share incentive schemes designed to
reward executives for achieving sustained earnings growth and to
promote a retention strategy. Up until July 2005 share options were
granted annually based on salary bands and performance. Vesting
periods are as follows: up to 20% after two years; up to 40% after
three years, up to 60% after four years and 100% after five years,
Share options may be relinquished by option-hclders in favour of
cash bonuses equal in value to the gain if the options were exercised.
Alll grants of options have a ten-year expiry period. There are specific
provisions governing retirement, retrenchment, il health, resignation
and death. The last allocations under this scheme were made on
I July 2005, with options granted under this scheme remaining in

place until they lapse, expire or are exercised.

At the annual general meeting held on 22 September 2005,
shareholders approved the implementation of the following three

new share incentive schemes:

* Share Appreciation Rights Scheme (SARS);
* LongTerm Incentive Plan (LTIP); and
+ Deferred Bonus Plan (DBP).

In terms of the SARS, LTIP and DBP, executive directors and selected
employees of the company and its subsidiaries will be awarded rights
1o receive shares in the company based on the value of these awards
(after the deduction of income tax) when performance conditions

have been met, and the awards have vested.

The company may not allocate more than ten per cent of its ordinary
shares in settlement of benefits of all company share schemes over
any rolling ten year period (including obligations under the old share

scheme).

The new schemes are intended to align management and
shareholder interests in that performance conditions governing the
vesting of the scheme instruments are related to, inter alia, growth in
earnings, share price and total shareholder return relative to targets
which are intended to be stretching but achievable. Targets are linked
where applicable to the company’s medium term business plan, over

rolling three-year performance periods.
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SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS

|
A special resolution authorising the company or a subsidiary, by way of a general authority, to acquire shares in the company was approved at the

annual general meeting held on 22 September 2005.
The following special resolutions were passed by subsidiaries:

Burgwyk Beleggings (Proprietary) Limited

The name was changed to Popcorn Cinema Advertising Sales (Proprietary) Limited. The
new business.

Johnnic Publishing Limited

The articles of association were amended to allow the acquisition of shares in its holding company, pursuant to the odd-lot offer.

DIRECTORS AND SECRETARY

The names of the directors in office are set out on pages | and 2 of the annual report. M

on | April 2005. Mr Benatar was appointed chief financial officer on the same date. On 21 June 2005 Mr Modise vacatec his office as a director
Mr Jenkins relinquished his executive duties on 30 September 2005 and continues to serve on the board as a non-executive director,

in terms of article 15 of the company's articles of association, Messrs Desai, Jenkins and \Nixley retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general

meeting. They are eligible and offer themselves for re-election.
The secretary of the company is Ms | R Matisonn. Her business and postal addresses ap
DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY AND OPINION

Having considered all statements of fact and opinion in this annuat report concerning the

+ accept, individually and collectively, full responsibility for such statements;

*  consider that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, there are no omissions of material facts or consideraticns relating to the company which
would make any statement of fact or opinion relating to the company contained in fhis annual report false or misleading; and

+  asfar as possible, have made all reasonable enguiries.

Further, the directors are of the opinion that:

+ the issued share capital of the company is adequate for the purposes of the business of the company and its subsidiaries;
+  the working capital available to the company and its subsidiaries is sufficient for the group's requirements for the foreseeable future;
* the consolidated assets of the company, fairly valued in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, =xceed the consolidated

liabilities of the company; and
* the company will be able to pay its debts as they become due in the ordinary cours

AUDITORS

1
The shareholders will be requested 1o re-appoint Deloitte & Touche as the independenf

communications

Pnain business and main object wers changed to reflect the

r Desai was appointed deputy grow.p chief executive officer

pear on page 87.
|
\

> company, the directors:

e of business.

auditors of the company.




Bt —— -\ —___________/ T EEEEY
____________________________________________™ communic

SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

The following registered shareholders held shares in excess of 5% of the issued ordinary shares of the company as at 31 March 2006:

Number of shares % of issued ordinary shares
Coronation I'1 303 786 109
Allan Gray 10538 248 10,2
Old Mutual 7 606 022 73

Further analysis of shareholders' interests in Johncom is provided on page 83.
DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

MrWixley and Ms Ramon beneficially held 4 000 and 519 shares respectively in the company’s issued ordinary share capital as at 31 March 2006, and
Mr Benatar held one share non-beneficially. No other directors held shares beneficially or non-beneficially, directly or indirectly. in the issued ordinary share
capital as at 31 March 2006.

As at year end, the total number of share options held by directors was 845 404 (2005: 929 950) which represents 0,8% (2005: 09%) of the number of
issued ordinary shares. These details are set out in the remuneration report on pages 32 to 36.

SHARE INCENTIVE SCHEMES

The company is limited to ten per cent of its ordinary shares in settlement of benefits under its share incentive schemes over any rolling ten year

period.

The following information is provided in accordance with the provisions of the Johnnic Communications Limited share incentive scheme as at 31 March:

2006 2005

Maximum number of ordinary shares which may be allocated 10382 116 10418 93|

Number of options outstanding at | April 5365 450 4674 150
Number of options allocated during the year

At allocation price of R24,00 6270 520

At allocation price of R37,00 I 516 990 | 690 700

Number of options lapsed during the year (239 018) (325 850)

Number of options relinquished during the year (915 568) (674 070)

Number of options outstanding at 31 March 5734 124 5 365 450

Number of ordinary shares which may still be allocated 4 647 992 5053 48|

Further information on the scheme is set out in Annexure 4 on page 82.
BOARD COMMITTEES

Details regarding the work of the board committees are contained in the corporate governance and risk management report set out on pages |9
to 22 and in the remuneration report on pages 32 to 36.

LITIGATION STATEMENT
There was no material litigation against the group during the vear and at the date of this report.

DIVIDEND

As mentioned fast year, the payment of a dividend was delayed until the implementation of the odd-lot offer. Accordingly, on 23 November 2005 a
dividend {number 190) of 75 cents (2005: 40 cents) per ordinary share was declared payable on 19 December 2005 to shareholders registered on
IS5 December 2005.

On 20 June 2006 a dividend (number 191) of 100 cents per ordinary share was declared payable on |7 July 2006 to shareholders registered on
14 July 2006.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT

Agreement was reached effective | April 2006 with Warner Music International under which the Warner Music licence is permanently housed in a newly
incorporated company, Warner Music Gallo Africa. Gallo Africa Limited has a 40% stake in this new company.
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The directors are pleased to present their report, together with the audited annual financial statements, for the year ended 31 March 2006.

NATURE OF BUSINESS
Johncom has six business units, namely:

Media: comprises newspaper, magazine and digital publishing and distribution.

Music: produces and distributes music content.

Retail: represents the group's interests in Exclusive Books and Nu Metro Theatres.
Home Entertainment: supplies rental and retail outlets with home video product |

Books and Maps: publishes and distributes books and maps. 1

Africa: represents the group’s interests in Africa outside the borders of South Africa.

DVD and VHS formats.

These business units are serviced by the group operations platform including Nu Metro Distribution, Entertainment Logistics Services, Associated

Music Distributors and Compact Disc Technologies.
johncom has strategic holdings in the following companies:

Joint Ventures:

Electronic Media Network Limited: (38,6%) a pay television network.

SuperSport International Holdings Limited: (38,6%) a sports-related pay televisio‘

ownership of professional sports teams. i
i

Associate:

Caxton and CTP Publishers and Printers Limited: (37,4%) a printing, publishing
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Attributable earnings amounted to R512 million (2005: R379 miflion), and headline earni
SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

Interests in directly held subsidiaries are set out on page 78. The group’s share of the attri

account taxation and minority interests for the year ended 31 March was:

31 March 2006 31 March 2005

Rm Rm

Profits 258 2 367
Losses (84) (2218)

n netwark incorporating franchising, merchandising, and the

and packaging comboany.

gs amounted to R506 million (2005: R376 million).

ibutable profits and losses of its subsidiaries after taking into

The 2005 figures are not comparable due to the group’s internal restructuring which waé accounted for in that year

SHARE CAPITAL ‘

There was no change in the authorised share capital of the company. However, the num

ber of the company's shares in issue reduced from

104 189 314 to 103 821 159 with effect from 10 October 2005 as a result of the implementation of an cdd-lot offer

ACQUISITION OF COMPANY’'S OWN SHARES
|
At the last annual general meeting shareholders gave the company and its subsidiaries
Companies Act for the acquisition of shares of the company. As this general approva

shareholders will be asked at this year's meeting to consider a special resolution to ren

meeting. At present, there are no plans to utilise this general authority.

a general approval in terms of sections 85 and 89 of the
remains valid only until the next annual general meeting,
ew this general approval until the following annual general

0000000000000 000000000CCCOOOOOOOOOCOOCOOOSCSOSTCSTORTNTY
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TO THE MEMBERS OF JOHNNIC COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED

We have audited the annual financial statements and group annual financial statements of Johnnic Communications Limited set out on pages
29 1o 82 for the year ended 3| March 2006. These financial statements are the responsibility of the company’s directors. Our responsibility

is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. VWe believe that our audit provides

a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the annual financial statements and group annual financial statements fairly present, in all material respects, the financial position
of the company and the group at 31 March 2006, and the results of their operations and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance

with International Financial Reporting Standards and in the manner required by the Companies Act of South Africa.

Mty & Usucke

DELOITTE & TOUCHE
REGISTERED AUDITORS

per M H Holme

Partner
20 June 2006
Buildings | and 2, Deloitte Place

The Woodlands Cffice Park Woodlands Drive
Sandton

Deloitte & Touche National Executive: GG Gelink Chief Executive AE Swiegers Chief Operating Officer GM Pinnock Audit
DL Kennedy Tax L Geeringh Consulting MG Crisp Financial Advisory L Bam Strategy CR Beukman Finance T) Brown Clients and Markets

SJIC Sibisi Public Sector and Corporate Social Responsibility NT Mtoba Chairman of the Board | Rhynes Deputy Chairman of the Board

A full list of partners and directors is available on request
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The annual financial statements and group annual financial statements which appear on pages 29 to 82 were apg-oved by the board of

directors on 20 June 2006 and are signed on its behalf by: |

T (e 4

M E RAMANO P C DESAI
CHAIRPERSON DEPUTY GROUP
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

|
Certificate by the company secretary 1
|
|

In terms of section 268G (d) of the Companies Act, 1573, as amended, | certify that to the best of my knowledge and belief, the company

has lodged with the Registrar of Companies for the financial year ended 31 March 2:006 all returns required of a pub.ic company in terms of

the Companies Act, and that these returns are true, correct and up to date,

| R MATISONN
COMPANY SECRETARY

JOHANNESBURG
20 June 2006

H BENATAR
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER




The directors are required by the Companies Act in South Africa
to maintain adequate accounting records and to prepare annual
financial statements which fairly present the state of affairs of the
company and the group as at the end of the financial year and the
profit or loss for that year, in conformity with International Financial
Reporting Standards and the Companies Act in South Africa. The
annual financial statements are the responsibility of the directors
and it is the responsibility of the external auditors to report
thereon. The report of the independent auditors to the members

of the company is set out on page 28,

To enable the directors to meet their responsibilities, the board
sets standards and implements systems of internal control aimed
at reducing the risk of error or loss, in a cost-effective manner.
These controls include the proper delegation of responsibilities
within a clearly defined framework, effective accounting
procedures and adequate segregation of duties to ensure an
acceptable level of risk. These controls are monitored throughout
the group and all employees are required to maintain the highest
ethical standards in ensuring that the group's business practices are

conducted in a manner which is above reproach.

The directors are of the opinion, based on the information and
explanations given by management, that the internal accounting
controls are adequate to ensure that the financial records may be
relied upon for preparing the annual financial statements and

maintaining accountability for assets and liabilities.

Nothing has come to the attention of the directors to indicate that
any material breakdown in the functioning of these controls,
procedures and systems has occurred during the year under

review.

The annual financial statements are based on appropriate
accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent
judgements and estimates, and comply with International Financial

Reporting Standards.

The directors are of the opinion that the annual financial
statements fairly present the financial position of the company and
of the group as at 31 March 2006, and the results of their

operations and cash flows for the year then ended.

The annual financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis and the directors have every reason to believe that
the business will continue to operate as a going concern in the

year ahead.
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Ip five year review

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Performance per ordinary share
Attributable earnings (cents) 492 364 176 87 2 608
Headline earnings (cents) 486 361 166 151 233
Dividends (cents) 75 40 30 — —
Net book value (cents) 2 254 I 872 I 561 | 504 I 536
Returns and profitability ratios
Return on assets (%) @ 12,9 1.6 69 3.6 21,6
Return on average shareholders'
funds (%) & 23,6 210 109 99 77
Solvency and liquidity ratios
Gearing (%) @ (22,1) (12,8) (188) 34 246
Interest cover (times) © 17,7 9.7 58 1,3 30
Current ratio ® 1,6:} 1,31 1,7:1 141 [ 1]
Long-term borrowings to total assets (%) 0,4 04 06 1.0 07
Share performance
Number of ordinary shares in issue
— at end of year (000's) 103 821 104 189 104 189 04 189 104 189
— weighted average during year (000's) 104 015 104 189 104 189 104 189 104 189
Closing price (cents per share) 6 099 3730 2 062 I 378 1250
Market capitalisation (Rm) 6332 3886 2 148 | 436 302

Definitions

(1} Interest of Johnnic Communications Limited shareholders divided by the number of ordinary shares in issue at year end

(2) Profit for the year as a percentage of the average of the opening and closing balances of total assets

(3) Headline earnings as a percentage of the average of the opening and closing balances of ordinary shareholders' interest

(4) Interest bearing liabilities (long-term and short-term) net of positive cash balances, as a percentage of total equity

(5) Profit from operations before exceptional items divided by finance costs

(6) Current assets divided by current liabilities

Return on assets (%)

21,6

Return on average shareholders’ funds (%)

*+ 2002 includes MTN Group Limited which was unbundled on 9 July 2001
*  Operating leases accounted for on the cash basis for 2002-2003,



FOUp TIve year review J N it datie

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm
Income statement - extracts
Revenue 4 651 4080 2 698 3332 5475
Profit from operations before exceptional items 443 360 109 80 434
Net finance income (costs) 27 7 14 (33) (H17)
Taxation (177) (125) (28) (139) (224)
Minority interest (14) (5) (5) ) (93)
Attributable earnings 512 379 184 90 2718
Headline earnings 506 376 173 157 243
Balance sheet ~ extracts
Property, plant and equipment 360 357 203 328 408
Intangible assets 378 370 49 44 109
Other non-current assets 1226 | 140 | 036 995 | 052
Bank balances, deposits and cash 653 454 416 291 244
Other current assets 1 642 | 558 | 050 | 041 | 333
Total assets 4259 | 3879 2754 2699 3 146
Interest of Johnnic Communications Limited shareholders 2 340 [ 950 | 626 | 567 | 601
Minority interest 53 42 28 8 27
Total equity 2393 1992 | 654 | 575 | 628
Non-current liabilities 405 373 257 143 132
Current liabilities 1 461 t 514 843 981 } 386
Total liabilities 1 866 { 887 I 100 124 | 518
Total equity and liabilities 4 259 - 3879 2754 2 699 3146
Cash flow statement - extracts |
Net cash generated by operations 533 426 144 211 760
Net cash from operating activities 368 305 13 135 604
Net cash (used in) from investing activities (8) (292) 265 230 (1 126)
Net cash (used in) from financing activities (72) (23) (164) Qn (276)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 622 335 332 16 (216)
|
Revenue (Rm) H‘eadline earnings (Rm)
|
1
243

» 2002 includes MTN Group Limited which was unbundled on 9 July 2001.
Operating leases accounted for on the cash basis for 2002 and 2003.

062005 2004 2603 2002 )
|
|
|
|
\
\
|

2002 to 2004 prepared in accordance with SA GAAP in force during those financial years.

i
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implemented to enable any suspected irregularity involving employees,
shareholders and third parties who have a business relationship with
Johncom to be reported, with appropriate action then taken.

Catastrophe insurance and contingency plans are in place to ensure
ongoing product service delivery under adverse conditions.

The board is satisfied that an adequate ongoing risk management
process is in place which identifies, evaluates and manages the key risks
faced by the group.

‘Directors’ responsibility

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for the adequacy of the
accounting records, the effectiveness of risk management and the
internal control environment, the appropriateness of accounting
policies, and the bases of estimates and provisions. The directors also
acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the annual financial
statements, adhering to applicable accounting standards, and preparing
related information which fairly presents the state of affairs and the
results of the company and of the group.

Going concern

The directors confirm that they are satisfied that the company and the

* group have adequate financial resources to continue in business for the

foreseeable future, For this reason, they continue to adopt the going
concern basis for preparing the annual financial statements and the
board has minuted the basis for this.

INTEGRATED SUSTAINABILITY REPORTING

Johncom takes into account economic, social, cuftural, safety, health and
environmental concerns in the conduct of its business. it recognises its
obligation to ensure the safety and health of its employees and the
social upliftment of underprivileged communities.

Details of Johncom's integrated sustainability activities are contained in
the employment equity and human capital report, the corporate social
investment report, and the environment health and safety report
which appear on pages |12 to |8.

BUSINESS ETHICS INCLUDING CODE OF
CONDUCT

The group maintains the highest standards of compliance with
applicable laws and regulations. All dealings with stakeholders are
predicated on the principles of integrity and ethics. The code of
conduct and ethics is incorporated into the group human resources
manual and has been communicated within the group, and with
external parties. Johncom conducts fts business through fair and
commercially-competitive practices and trades with suppliers who
subscribe to similar ethical standards.

SHARE DEALINGS BY DIRECTORS AND
MANAGEMENT

In line with best practice and regulatory and statutory obligations,
directors and management may not deal directly or indirectly in the
company's shares during specific closed periods. This includes
participants in the Johnnic Communications share incentive scheme,
These closed periods operate from year end to the announcement of
the annual results, and from the half-year end to the announcement of
the interim results.

Restrictions on share dealings are also applied during any other period
considered sensitive in terms of the requirements of the JSE Limited.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The chairperson and executive directors regularly engage in dialogue
with major shareholders, institutional investors and analysts. A
presentation is made annually to analysts, institutional investors and the
media when announcing yearend results. The company also
disseminates relevant information to the media on pertinent matters.

Johncom is actively engaged in a variety of industry bodies, including
the World Association of Newspapers, Print Media South Africa, The
Southern African Federation Against Copyright Theft, the Recording
Industry of South Africa, the Publishing Association of South Africa and
the Internal Map and Travel Association, through funding and also by
means of executive directors and senior management taking leading
roles in industry issues.

Further details of the company’s activities in relation to its stakeholders
appear on pages |2 to |18,

Johncom has a share care line to address shareholder queries. There
were stil | 619 certificated shareholders at 31 March 2006.
Shareholders are reminded that they are unable to deal in their shares
unless they are dematerialised. The contact details of the share care
line are on page 87 of this annual report.

During the year, Johncom implemented an odd-lot offer to
shareholders holding less than 100 shares, Following the odd-lot offer,
391 127 shares were sold, and 22 972 shares were purchased by odd-
lot holders.

Shareholders are encouraged to attend the annual general meeting of
the company, and to put questions to the board and the chairpersons
of the audit and remuneration committees. Financial results are
published in the press, with shareholders receiving a copy. Extensive
information is also provided on the company website at
www,johncom.co.za.
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Attendance at the nominations committee meeting:

NAME 20.09.05
™M E Ramano (chairperson) i
D M Mashabela P
T AWixley P
P - Present

Executive committee

The executive committee meets quarterly,. The members at
31 March 2006 were A C G Molusi (chairperson), H Benatar,
P C Desai, F Amaral, M Cawe, B C Pottingerr M W Robertson,
H CTrollip, F Withers and B D Wootton.

The executive committee's mandate is to review and debate issues
before referring them to the board, to address business which, in the
best interests of the company, should not be delayed until the next
board meeting, and to decide on routine matters which are not
necessary to elevate to the board.

Operational management committee meetings are held quarterly,
ensuring the appropriate oversight of the key businesses at an
executive level. Group issues raised at the operational management
committee level are referred to the executive committee for
consideration.

COMPANY SECRETARIAL FUNCTION

The company secretary is required to provide the directors,
collectively and individually with detalled guidance on their duties,
responsibilities and powers. Directors have unlimited access to the
advice and services of the company secretary, who plays an active role
in the corporate governance process.

The company secretary assists in determining the annual board plan
and board agenda, and in formulating governance and board-related
issues. The company secretary is also closely involved in the induction
and crientation of new directors, providing a comprehensive pack of
information relevant to their duties and making arrangements for
them to meet with key executives, visit operations and meet with the
company's stock exchange sponsor.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
External audit

The external auditors are responsible for reporting on whether the
financial statements are fairly presented in conformity with
International Financial Reporting Standards and the Companies Act in
South Africa. The external auditors offer reasonable, but not absclute,
assurance on the accuracy of financial disclosures. The preparation of
all financial statements is the responsibility of management and the
board.

Consu\tatio}n occurs between external and internal auditors to ensure
an efficient|audit process. Co-ordination of efforts involves periodic
meetings t;o discuss matters of mutual interest, the exchange of
working papers, and a common understanding of auditing technigues
and methdds. The audit committee determines the principles for
approving t;he use of the external auditors for non-audit services.

\
Interna”audit
The board,:under the guidance of the audit committee, is satisfied that
the group has an effective internal audit function which operates in
accordance with terms of reference establisted by the board. The
internal au;dit function is provided by an in-house internal audit
department as well as by the external ssrvice provider Sizwe
Ntsaluba VSP. The roles and functions of both sets of internal auditors
are deﬂned;by the standards of the Institute cf Internal Auditors.

\
Internal auéit provides an independent, obj:ctive assurance which
adds value|to business processes and to mziagement in a manner
which enhances the group’s operations. | assists the group in
accomp\ishilng its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined
approach ;to evaluating the effectiveness of the group's risk
management, control and governance processis,

|
Internal audit plans cover matters identified in risk management
assessmenﬂs as well as issues highlighted by, the board, the audit
committee, executive directors and senior management. The audit
committee lapproves the internal audit work plan.

\
Financial and operational risks and controls
|

Risk govemjance operates within a strongly-defined structure which is

agreed by fthe board and monitored by the audit committee. The
objectives are to identify the level of risk aporopriate to the group,
taking into account the need tc increase shareholder value through an
entreprene;urial culture and ensuring that *he group achieves its
objectives. [Risk identification includes both actual and potential risks.
The potent‘ial impact of key risks is quantified and measured against a
broad set o;f assumptions.

Mitigation lgf risks and compensating control: are implemented and
monitored.| This process is recorded in a critizal risk areas document
which covers a broad range of issues including physical and operational
risks, humarjw resources risks, technology risks, business continuity and
disaster recovery risks, credit and market risks, and compliance risks.
All operatic;nal management committees review and update their own
critical risk Tareas documents at least twice a yzar.

Systems of‘ internal financial controls include written policies and

procedures and clearly defined lines of responsibility and

accountabi\ity. Actual results are reviewed and discussed at executive
committee ‘and board levels,
|

\

Operational risks are managed to acceptable levels by ensuring that

the approp‘riate infrastructure, controls, systems and people are in

place acro‘ss the group. An independent hotline has been




and Wixley. Other board members attend these meetings when
appropriate. The current advisors to this committee are Nedbank
Capital, a division of Nedbank Limited. This committee will be
dissolved once its mandate has been fulfilled.

Audit committee

The salient responsibilities of the audit committee, as contained in its
mandate, are to:

» review the half-year and year-end financial results and to make
recommendations to the board;

* consider the accounting policies, disclosures, significant provisions
and estimates, and other potentially controversial financial issues;

+ assess financial and operational risk areas, systems of internal
controls, policies and procedures for controlling the company's
assets and information systems, the integrity and reliability of the
financial reporting process, staffing of key financial functions, and
compliance with regulatory matters;

* review the risk philosophy, strategy and policies and to ensure
compliance with these policies and with the overall risk profile of
the company;

+ monitor management's response to reported weaknesses in
controls and deficiencies in systems, and to monitor the
effectiveness of corrective action implemented;

+ review serious cases of fraud, breakdowns in controls, reported
control weaknesses, and to monitor management’s response to
these issues;

+ evaluate the independence and effectiveness of the external
auditors and to consider whether any non-audit services rendered
by the external auditors impair their independence; and

+ evaluate the effectiveness of the internal auditors and of the
internal audit function.

Al members of the audit committee are financially literate with
extensive experience in the activities of the committee. Executive
directors, the external and internal auditors as well as senior financial
management attend audit committee meetings, three of which were
held during the year under review. At the conclusion of these
meetings, the committee meets separately with management and with
each set of auditors for candid discussions on any issues which might
require attention.

The internal and external auditors have unrestricted access to the
chairperson and members of the audit committee,

During the year, the audit committee met to review the
implementation of International Financial Reporting Standards and to
recommend the options to be elected to the board.

Attendance at audit committee meetings:

NAME 14.06.05 | 06.09.05 | 17.11.05
T AWixley (chairperson) P P P

C B Brayshaw P P P

D M Mashabela A P P

W S Moutloatse P P P

K C Ramon P P I
P - Present A - Apologies

Remuneration committee

The remuneration committee's mandate is to determine the
company's remuneration philosophy and policy for directors and
senior management, for recommendation to the board.

Full details are set out in the remuneration report on pages 32 to 36.
Investment and restructuring committee

This committee’s mandate is to review potential acquisitions and
disposals in terms of clearly-defined criteria and to make

recommendations to the board.

During the year, this committee considered various investments for
the group, both internally developed and external opportunities,

Attendance at investment and restructuring committee meetings:

NAME 28.09.05 | 17.11.05
D M Mashabela (chairperson) P P
W S Moutloatse A P
M E Ramano P A
K C Ramon P P
P - Present A - Apologies

Nominations committee

The nominations committee is responsible for recommending new
executive and non-executive directors to the board, taking into
account best practice regarding the composition of the board in
general and the balance between executive and non-executive
directors, including independent directors.

The committee held one meeting during the year to review the
composition of the board and its representation on the boards of its
key investments.




Qrporate governance and

PRINCIPLES AND IMPLEMENTATION OF
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The directors of Johncom are committed to the principles of
corporate governance set out in the King Report on Corporate
Governance for South Africa — 2002 (King Il) and international best
practice, and are ultimately responsible for the performance and affairs
of Johncom. This includes a strong focus on compliance with the
qualitative aspects of corporate governance to ensure that
implementation matches the needs of the business.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The company has a unitary board. At vear end, there were seven
independent non-executive directors, one non-executive director and
three executive directors. Changes in the directorate are detailed on
pages | and 2 of this annual report and in the directors’ report on
page 31.

The board believes that its directors have a diverse range of expertise
and experience, and recognises the need to increase its female
representation.

The board has a clearly defined charter which sets out its roles and
responsibilities, and is closely aligned to the requirements of King Il.
The board is responsible for setting the direction. of the company.
Annual strategy review meetings enable comprehensive objectives to
be developed for the group, its divisions, executives and senior
management. The board oversees and monitors the progress of the
business at quarterly board meetings, with additional meetings held as
required. Board meetings are conducted within the parameters of the
board charter  Strategy. financial and operational performances,
investment opportunities and transformation are debated thoroughly
before decisions are taken by the board.

The board has an approvals framework in place which is regularty
reviewed and updated. It clearly sets out the authority levels for the
board, its committees and executive management. Matters specifically
reserved for the board's decision include adopting the strategic
direction of Johncom, appointing the group chief executive officer and
certain other key senior executives, approving financial reports for
public disclosure, approving the business plan, budget and financial
policies, reviewing operating results, the risk management strategy, the
effectiveness of corporate governance practices and policies, and
approving significant capital expenditure.

The roles of chairperson and group chief executive officer are
separate. The chairperson provides overall leadership to the board
without limiting the principles of collective responsibility for board
decisions. The chairperson has nc executive functions. The group
chief executive officer takes responsibility for the effective and efficient
running of the company on a day-to-day basis, including key
investments and associates. The deputy group chief executive officer
manages Johncom's business operations and resources to ensure
there is a common focus and maximised operational performance.

risk management report
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All board r}nembers are required to disclose their shareholdings in

Johncom, o‘ther directorships and any potental conflicts of interest.

Directors dp not participate in any discussions and decision-making on
matters in which they have an interest,

Attendance[ at board meetings:

‘ B |w|w|ialw|w|e
e |e|e|e | ala|a |
< b-d o4 -} i~ o~ - [ne]
ele e|e @|la|=|e
NAME | R|s|~|8|8|]R|KRIN
M E Ramano
N PlP PP |>]P|P P
(chairperson)
ACGMoluss | PP lPlpPlriP|AaleP
P C Desai PlelPr PP |P|P]|eP
H Benatar Ple|P|PlPlP|P]|P
CBarayshaw | P [P P AP [P |P|P
P M Jenkifs AlP PP lP [P ]|P]|P
DMMashaoela | P | P | PP |P|P|P|P
|
J R D Modise* AblAD | AD|—|—|— | — 1| —
WSMoutloatse | P | PP PP IP PP
TRAOlhant | P |a P | alr PP |P
K C Ramon PlepiP|P|P|P|P]|P
T A Widey PlP PP ]2 P |P|P
P - Present A - Apologies # - Special board meeting
Ab - Absent * Office vazated 21 June 2005

BOARD COMMITTEES

The board|has established several permaneni committees to assist it
in discharging its responsibilities and obligations. There is an audit

committéel remuneration cornmittee, investment and restructuring
committeel nominations committee and exe:utive committee. The
board hasi documented and approved mazndates which delegate
specific responsibilities to these committees. All committees report to
the board bn their activities. The board is cognisant that this does not
detract from its ultimate accountability for the affairs and performance
of the com‘pany.

|
\ .
During the year, the members of the permanent board committees

(other than the executive committee) consisted of non-executive
directors. [Executive management and outsic 2 service providers and
experts attjend by invitation as required. The board is satisfied that all
committees have discharged their respon:ibilities satisfactorily, in
accordance with their terms of reference, during the year under
review. ‘

In the ZOdS financial year, a restructuring oversight committee was
established; with a mandate to assist the board in developing and
imp!ement‘ing an appropriate black economic empowerment strategy.
This committee is still in place and is chaired b Mr Ramano. The other

members 1of this committee are Messrs Brayshaw, Jenkins, Mashabela

[ 9 ohnnic Communications Limited | Annual report 2006

|




A = = O R I DO A et ol bbb/ A —/ communications

at all times. Sites are inspected annually by the Department of Labour.
Trained first aiders and fire marshals are in place in the rest of the group
and are responsible for the safety of all staff at their operations. Regular

fire drills ensure that staff know how to react in an emergency.

The group has, contracted ER24 as a working partner to assist with

training and emergencies.

SECURITY

Johncom is a member of the Rosebank Management District police

forum which manages security in the area and creates jobs.

RELATIONS WITH SURROUNDING
COMMUNITIES

As Johncom House is in a residential area, management has an

agreement with the Rosebank Management District and its residents to

minimise night-time lighting.

All other operations are in commercial areas which do not require these

procedures.

. GUIDELINES FOR SUPPLIERS AND BUSINESS
PARTNERS

Johncom has guidelines on labour standards and human rights which

govern its relationships with suppliers and business partners,

Labour standards

Johncom expects its suppliers and business partners;

* ot to use workers under compulsory school age;

* not to use compulsory labour such as prison workers;

* not to enforce a working week which exceeds 45 hours;

+ to allow employees at least one day off for every 17 days worked:
and

+ to offer remuneration which complies with prevailing laws and which

matches local practice.

Freedom of association and working conditions
Johncom expects its suppliers and business partners to:

« respect the rights of individuals in terms of freedom of association;
+ offer a safe and healthy work environment;
« demonstrate full compliance with local laws and regulations; and

+ support diversity.
Commitments to suppliers and business partners

+ Johncom selects suppliers on merit while also assessing black
economic empowerment credentials.

+ Johncom is committed to building mutually-beneficial relationships
with its major suppliers and business partners.

+ Johncom is committed to providing existing and potential suppliers
with clear criteria for decisions on major supply contracts.

» Johncom respects the patents, trademarks, copyrights, proprietary

information and trade secrets of its suppliers and business partners.




Sustainable development of the environrment and the right of people
to a healthy environment in which to work and live is a principle
Johncom fully endorses. A board-approved policy defining sound
environmental practices has been disseminated to employees so that
they understand and adhere to their responsibilities and obligations

regarding environmental matters.

As a group, we have identified the following objectives:

* to promote social and envirenmental responsibility through our
business activities;

*+ 1o reduce potential reputation and financial risk associzted with
investments or relationships with suppliers showing disregard for
environmental, ethical and social issues;

* to actively seek and promote business relationships with
companies involved in  cleaner production and other
environmentally-friendly processes; and

+ to be a leader in the development of sound ethical, social and

environmental practices relevant to our areas of operations.

in fine with this policy, employees who identify real or potential health
or safety risks to staff or the wider community must report these to

the appropriate manager.

PAPER PURCHASING

Johncom is a major consumer of paper, particularly through our
newspaper, magazine and book publishing enterprises. Accordingly.

our paper-purchasing policy requires that:

+ paper suppliers comply with environmental laws and regulations;

+ where possible and viable, Johncom uses paper products with
recycled content;

» Johncom works with suppliers to ensure that its paper is from
certified, well-managed forests; and

+  Johncom rejects illegal logging of old-growth forests.

PAPER RECYCLING

Johncom recycles used paper internally to ensure it does not end up
in fandfills. Assisted by an environmental management company, we
separate non-environmentally friendly waste from recycling waste on

site.

BUILDING AND FACILITIES MANAGEMENT

A dedicatec‘ division is responsible for the groud's properties, including
any direct ir‘npact on the environment. This centralised building and
facilities management function relies on business unit heads for

assistance with environmental issues.

The group’s property portfolio comprises 27 500m? of leased

premises and 7 200m? of owned property. This portfolio is continually

reviewed to ensure that property requirements meet the

environment, health and safety needs of the business.

|
CLEAN AIR

A clean air and non-smoking policy is enforced in all group premises,.

. ‘ I .
Appropriate processes are in place to maintain clean air standards.
\

\
TOXIC GASES
L

Johncom he}ad office uses home-gas for its canteen facility because

municipal ga‘s is not availlable in the area. The gas is safely stored as
prescribed b‘y legislation, The company also removes halon gas from

the IT environment and replaces it with a dry Hitrogen.

|
WATER USAGE
1
!
Johncom's head office water use does not have a significant

I . . ) .
environmental impact. Despite this, we actively pursue water-efficiency

initiatives, sujch as speedily repairing leaks, and using borehole water for

S \ S
irrigation. Water use at all other operations i« managed by the local

maintenance departments.

|
|
ENERGY

johncom's primary energy source is electrizity. At head office,

| ‘ . .
numerous energy efficiency measures are in place. Energy is managed

by the local maintenance departments at all other operations.
HEALTH AND SAFETY

johncom's head office health and safety commitiee manages a team of

trained first|aiders and fire marshals resporsible for incidents or
accidents in their designated areas. Refresher courses are conducted
annually. He?d office fire marshals are also responsible for ensuring all

fire equipment is serviced regularly and that fire escapes are accessible




Music

« Gallo's annual charity golf day raised R220 000 for the Topsy
Foundation. Topsy: offers medical and social welfare services,
including antiretroviral treatment, to thousands of people in under-
serviced communities. Topsy also provides in-house care to a group
of orphaned and vulnerable children, and its poverty alleviation and
training programme provides employment for rural women who
manufacture a range of export-quality fashion accessories. In
recognition of the support shown to the Topsy Foundation by the
Music division, the newly-built community outreach centre at the
Topsy Sanctuary was named Gallo House.

» Through its relationship with artist Phil Collins, Gallo also donated
R590 000 of royalties to the Topsy Foundation.

+ Gallo donated over R200 000 to various charities for poverty
alleviation programmes.

Group Operations

« CDT donated R25 000 to the 94.7 Highveld Stereo Aids Day
telethon, raising funds for Sparrow Ministries.

+ Nu Metro Film Distribution provided free screenings of the movie
Drum to | 600 people in a number of communities in partnership
with the National Department of Arts and Culture, the Tshwane
Metropolitan Council and other stakeholders including NGOs,
community-based organisations, local government and cultural
groups.

+ ELS adopted the baby sanctuary. Al Our Children First, with
management and staff of ELS having worked very hard towards fund-
raising and collecting toys and food items for the sanctuary.

SUPPORT FOR EDUCATION

As a media company, Johncom is acutely aware of the responsibility of
its publications to South African society. Qur editors are committed to
supporting a free, open and democratic society and group policy
requires that all journalists in the group strive to ensure that their
reporting is fair, balanced, accurate and responsible.

A media development trust supports educational grants specifically
aimed at ensuring that the highest standards in journalism are
maintained. The status of Johncom’s various long-term commitments is
detailed below.

+ Completion of the new home for the Rhodes University School of
journalism and Media Studies, a facility which has educated many
graduates who now work for Johncom. The R4,6 million donated by
Johncom over five years in 2004 (R1.8 million paid in the current
year) is being used for the top floor of the Africa Media Matrix
building. This building houses the schools sophisticated and flexible

print media and internet sections, with four large computer
laboratories for photo-processing, design and layout, writing and new
media. Johncom also supports other initiatives at the university
including a schools’ festival cbmpetition and a chair of new media,

Johncom committed R1,2 million over three years in 2004 to the
highly successful Johncom Pearson Journalism Training Programme,
focusing on financial journalism training to fast-track selected
candidates. A further R4,3 million was committed, with R2,8 million
paid during the year. In January 2006, through this program, Johncom
Media and BDFM were the first media houses to offer registered
learnerships to 12 learners. The programme is accredited by MAPPP
Seta and has received funding from the Seta. The programme gives
career guidance presentations on journalism to schools and conducts

practical journalism workshops at universities.

The final R120 000 payment of a total three-year commitment of
R555 000 was made to the University of the Witwatersrand
Journalism School to fund a newsroom laboratory which serves as a
training room. The laboratory is also used to produce the weekly
student newspaper, Vuvuzela, which is an important training ground
for students.
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with the long-term aim of having the project run by local residents,
excellent progress is being made in developing the required skills
and professional competencies from logistical needs like drivers'
licences to computer skills, administration and translation services.
With ongoing skills development, two trainers in home-based care
are now running courses to train staff in antiretroviral treatment
and in caring for dying children.

+ Women Against Child Abuse was granted RI50 000
(2005: R250 000) for its Kidz Clinic and Taming Your Tokoloshe
education programme in East Gauteng schools which focuses on
awareness and prevention of child abuse. Teachers have lauded the
programme for sending a strong message to perpetrators of child
abuse that children are being educated and taught not to keep
secrets about sexual abuse. During the year, over || 000 learners
benefited from exposure‘to the programme.

* Phedisang, in Limpopo, was granted R100 000 (2005: R100 000) to
maintain its kitchens in the rural towns of Enable, Turkey, Worster
and Butswana. Identified orphaned and vulnerable children in
these communities are fed two meals a day, seven days a week.
During the year, the number of children benefiting from the
program increased and Phedisang was also able to devise and test
a method of opening new hubs.

Other grants which fell within the CSI committee's mandate were also
made during the year.

Operational investment

Johncom'’s operations made numerous social investments, some of
which are detailed below.

Media

* By the end of 2005, three-quarters of the RI0 million raised by the
Sunday Times and other partners for the tsunami disaster fund had
been allocated to projects for caring for affected children and
housing reconstruction.

» The Sunday Times planted a winter vegetable garden for the Powa
shelter for abused women in Vosloorus, and bought panel heaters
with royalties donated by David Bullard from the sale of his book.

*  The annual Community Builder of the Year award, sponsored by
the Sowetan, Old Mutual and the SABC, recognises unsung heroes
and heroines throughout South Africa who have dedicated
themselves to helping the needy,

+ Mama Angel, an integral part of the Sowetan, assists readers in
working to develop their communities and perpetuates legendary
former editor Dr Aggrey Klaaste's nation-building philosophy.

Retail

* The Heqald VW Cycle Tour in February 2006 raised more than

R40 OOO\ for charity and social upliftment. £20 000 was distributed

by co-organisers, Round Table, to charities end the balance used to
develop icycling among the previously disacvantaged.

The Daily Dispatch provided R20 000 in aditorial space for the
Daily Dispatch Film Festival, with profits from the film supplement
donated|to Arcadia Rotary and the Daily Dispatch Children's Fund.

The Financial Mail raised nearly R4 millior from corporates and
private éponsors to provide remote schoals with reading books,
portable] libraries and teacher training as part of the Rally to Read
project. Each May, sponsors join the Financial Mail and its partners,
McCarthyy Motor Holdings and the Read Ec ucation Trust, to deliver
these b;ooks, often in 4x4 convoys. In 2005, Rally to Read
supported 135 schools in eight provinces, nroviding education for
more than 30 000 children,

MIMS donated copies of MIMS Monthly anct MIMS Desk Reference
1o the University of Pretoria’s department of medicine for sale to
students} Proceeds are used to buy books for the university library.
MIMS aI;o donated medical books to the Peoples’ Dispensary for

Sick Aninjﬁals for use by voluntary workers,

|
The Exc(usive Books Reading Trust shares the pleasure of books
and reading with as many children as possible. To date, Exclusive
Books has distributed over half a millicy books, worth over
R25 mi\li‘on, and has donated an entire library to the community of
Zamimpi‘lo. an informal settlement south of Johannesburg.

|
Exclusive: Books participated in the construction and stocking of a
commun‘ity library in Ndodeni, a remote village in the southern
Drakensg)erg of KwaZulu-Natal. The handover of the library to the
Famity Li;teracy Project in March 2006 markzd the celebration of a
R300 000 facility which will make a differznce to the people of
Ndodenij. The library occupies a large roorn, with a second room
available [for adult education classes. The new building is the only

brick s‘trtﬁcture in the village and will hopefu'ly become the focus of
community activities.
i

Books and Maps

Books w\‘ith a retail value of R370 000 were donated to over 50
educational and welfare organisations including the Western Cape
Community Trust, St Luke's Hospice, Lange aan Animal Care and
Michael Oak Waldorf School.

Home Entertainment

DVDs were donated to Rosca Children's Shelter in Southgate as

part of the sixteen days of activism against women and children

abuse.
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As a responsible corporate citizen, Johncom contributes to the social
development and empowerment of the broader community in South
Africa through various corporate social investment (CSI) initiatives at
group and operational levels,

Group investment

Annually, 1% of aftertax profits is allocated to the CSI committee,
comprising senior executives, for projects aimed at supporting major
national and regional inttiatives. The committee meets bi-annually to
review applications which comply with its mandate, and a grant-
making specialist consultant attends meetings by invitation,

Operational investment

Johncom's business units support CSl initiatives related to their specific
activities or locations. Operational chief executives or senior
executives control divisional CSI budgets and grants and report on
their activities to the Johncom CSI committee.

AREAS OF FOCUS
Group investment

Johncom has selected three areas of focus where it can make a
significant impact:

* education, training, skills development and literacy;

+ life-threatening ilinesses, in particular assisting those impacted by
life-threatening diseases via credible support structures. This
initiative includes HIV/Aids orphans and vulnerable children; and

+ women's empowerment, focusing on abused women.

Johncom's CSI programme does not support commercial ventures,
religious organisations, overseas tours and exchanges, individuals,
sporting activities or bursaries. We do provide study bursaries in
specific disciplines through our human resources initiatives.

Given Johncom's aim to support projects for three-year periods, seven
major projects were supported at group level during the vear, all of
which received funding in the previous year. Applications are required
annually, despite our langer project horizon, and Johncom analyses the
merits of each appeal. The status of our current projects is detailed
below.

+ RI50 000 (2005: R250 000) was granted to Food and Trees for
Africa in Limpopo to maintain community food gardens at
Hluvukani, Ludlow and Murhotso clinics. The gardens were planted
with vegetables, herbs and maize and helped to improve health at
the clinics. The project aims to train and transfer skills, knowledge
and information to volunteers. The project also helps create a
conducive and healthier environment for patients and the local
community. Project members acquire skills in plant care and

propagation, soil preparation, water conservation, harvesting and
bed design. A nursery was constructed, and an irrigation system
and pump were installed, at the Hiuvukani permaculture project.
The income generated is reinvested in the projects.

Kids Haven in Gauteng received R100 000 (2005: R100 000) to
provide a diverse education programme which caters for the
specific needs of each child. The key objectives of Kids Haven are
to provide children with a secure environment and a suitable
educational programme. Many of these youngsters were
previously street children and received very little formal education.
Children benefit from age-appropriate, in-house bridging school
facilities at Kids Haven before moving on to local schools. Life skills
programmes run concurrently with other educational
programmes. The high standard of the life skills programmes has
been acknowledged by the International Labour Organisation.

R150 000 (2005: R250 000) was granted to READ in the Eastern
Cape for the Queenstown High School project which aims to
improve school management practices, teacher and classroom
practices, and lteracy levels in ten secondary schools. These
schools were selected by the Department of Education to
improve their school-leaver results. The district has severely under-
resourced schools and the basic educational leve! of teachers and
learners is lower than other areas in the country. After only one
year of implementation, the READ programme made significant
progress in equipping teachers with necessary skilis, and the grade
12 results improved by 15% in the 2005 examinations. By
improving the skills of teachers, the programme ensures the
transfer of these skills in future and the intention is to replicate this
sustainable model nationally. READ has also revised its courses to
meet the needs of the Cofimvaba/Lady Frere district. This review
gave READ the opportunity to audit and redesign its courses to
reflect current methodologies and best practices in high school
teaching.

Tiger Kloof Educational Institute, a South African heritage site in
North West Province, was granted R250 000 (2005: R250 000) for
its programme of experiential learning opportunities for learners
and educators. The funding will be allocated mainly to building
permanent structures with the balance used for under-resourced
school camps. Activities are designed to nurture a love of the
environment and to develop skills and values which will help
address social and educational problems encountered in under
resourced schools in the region. Outcomes include team-building,
leadership, problem-solving, conflict resolution, spiritual awareness
and a positive self-image. Once the centre is fully developed,
courses will include adventure activities such as rock climbing and
abseiling. The facility benefits learners at Tiger Kloof, and is made
available to local under-privileged schools. ‘

Ingwavuma Orphan Care in KwaZulu-Natal was granted R150 000
(2005: R200 000) to assist with community care, educating and
feeding orphaned and vulnerable children. Funding also contributes
to staff training, teacher workshops and school programmes. In line
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HUMAN CAPITAL DEVELOPMENT

The increasing competition, consumerism and ever changing markets
within the media and entertainment industry pose huge challenges to
the group's differentiated customer value proposition. Central to the
group's successful implementation of a customer-centric strategy is the
management and development of key talent. In the pursuance of this
objective, the group has recognised that it is characterised by diverse
business units with different products and markets and hence differing
skills bases. To respond appropriately to these challenges, attraction
and retention of niche skills and customisation of training and
development is a necessity. A number of training methodologies are
applied pro-actively and re-actively to enhance competency levels, and
to ensure the competitiveness of talent across business units.
Measurement tools are in place to ensure that there is evidence of

return on investment on training.

EMPLOYEE WELLNESS

Within Johncom, employee wellness is a business imperative and the
‘group strives to maintain and promote a healthy employee profile. The
avaifability of specific heafth-related human resources policies and
practices ensure effective delivery of employee wellness interventions,
To complement these efforts, johncom recently conducted a group-
wide heafth audit. One side of the health audit delved into
psychological aspects, in particular looking at work and home life
balances. The other aspect looked at psychological dimensions which
have an impact on the job and productivity of employees. Those who
participated in the health audit had ‘the benefit of reviewing a
confidential individualised health report with recommendations for
health improvements. Subsequently, it has been noted that the health
audit has generated an improved degree of interest in general wellness
by employees. The group has also used the findings of the health audit

to revise and prioritise employee wellness related issues across the

group.

In addition to the above, the group has an ongoing HIV/Aids
management programme which is offered through a variety of sources
based on individual and group needs. On-line HIV/Aids education and
support services, HIV/Aids milestone days of remembrance and an

HIV/Aids support group are offered.

EMPLOYEE RELATIONS

The group enjoys a mature relationship with employees and
stakeholders and this is largely attributed to good leadership at shop-
floor level. HL!Jmaﬂ resources issues raised by emiployees are attended
to quickly an“d effectively with few disputes being elevated to the
CCMA or otHwer relevant bodies.

The group has plant level recognition agreenments with the South
African Typogjgraphic Union (SATU), the South African Commercial,
Catering and‘ Allied Workers Union (SACCAWU) and the Media
Workers Ass‘rociation of South Africa (MWASA)., Management also’
recognises s%caff participative forums (which deal with substantive
employment/ issues) across the group's busines:es,

|

[

EDUCATIONAL ASSISTANCE AND BURSARIES
|

The group provides educational assistance to staff members for their

studies, and{ also has a bursary policy which extends educational

assistance Jn“{ respect of the children of lower-income employees. The

group views/‘ its contributions as complimentary to its corporate social

investment “contribu‘tions.

|
|
{
|
|
|
|
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mployment equity and human capital report

EMPLOYMENT EQUITY

Johncom management strives to constantly enhance demographic The employment of blacks at the divisional management level has
profiles across all levels, with acceptance of this approach by all increased from 33% in the previous year to 35% in 2006. At the
management layers of the organisation. To the extent that an professional staff level, black representation increased from 46% in
enhanced demographic profile is a key driver in the group's 2005 to 50% in 2006.

transformation process, the group is equally committed to, and has

significantly invested in, training and development.

Board of directors profile

T African 46% % African 55%

[ Asian 18% ’ [ Asian 18%

[} White male 36% [ White male 27%

[~ African 20% 7 African 19%

{7 Asian 6% [ Asian 8%

[ Coloured 9% [ Coloured 6%
[ White female 31% [ White female 29%

1 White male 34% ] White male 38%

7 African 33% T African 26%

[ Asian 8% ] Asian 9%
Coloured 9% Coloured 1%
] {:

[ White female 25% [ White female 27%

[ White male 25% 1 White male 9707 1
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MEDIA

+ The Sunday Times Lifestyle magazine took gold from the Advantage
Magazine for best magazine supplement 2005 - for the 8th year
running.

* The Creative Circle voted the Sunday Times's ‘Battle of the Century’
centenary television advertisement as the best television commercial
for March 2006.

* Sunday Times journalists were honoured with the following awards:

® David Isaacson won the SAB Print Sports Journalist of the Year
award;

Fred Khumalo received first prize in creative journalism in the
2006 Mondi Shanduka newspaper awards,

o

Richard Stovin-Bradford won a Sanlam Excellence in Financial
Journalism award; and

Rowan Philp won the print general news category of the regional
Vodacom Journalist of the Year 2005 competition for Gauteng,
while Julian Rademeyer won the print general news category for
the Bloemfontein region.

= The Eastern Cape newspapers achieved the following awards:

o

At The Herald, Max Matavire won the prize for the best news
story in the print category of the regional Vodacom Journalist of
the Year 2005 competition. Sam Mkokeli topped the print feature
category, Fredlin Adriaan triumphed in the photography category,
while Lauren Cohen took top honours in the financial/economic
category.

© The Dally Dispatch’s Mesuli Zifo won SA Boxing's 2005 SA Boxing
Writer of the Year award and Luxolo Mantambo was awarded
2005 swimming writer of the year by Swimming SA.

* At Sowetan, Ramatsiyi Moholoa won the Liberty Nike Athletics Print
Media award, Bongani Magasela was selected as New Era’s boxing
writer of the year and Mcelwa Nchabeleng was voted Mvela Golden
League's media personality of the year

* MIMS Desk Reference won a PICA award in the annuals, special
editions, product guides and supplements category, while the MIMS
Guide to OTC Products, Pursuit magazine and Hospitality magazine
were all highly commended in their categories.

 Financial Mail journalists won the following accolades:

° Duncan Mcleod won the Telkom {CT Journalist of the Year 2005
award;

° Shoks Mxclo received the Telkom ICT Journalist of the Year 2005
award for newcomers;

° Stephe‘ﬂ Cranston collected the Citadel chairman's award for in-
depth financial journalism; and

° Claire Bisseker was awarded Mondi's Magazine Premier Award in
the business category.

RETAIL
* Exclusive Books continued to develop its brand, winning numerous
marketing and advertising awards including;
|
° four goHd, four silver and five bronze awards at the Loeries;

° a bronze award at the Carines advertising festival; and

° a Finweek Adreview award, and an Amasa gold award as well as
the prestigious Roger Garlic award at the Financial Mail Adfocus

awards; for the latest Harry Potter book liunch and promotion.

\
\
BOOKS AND MAPS

* Retun to} Corriebush won the 2005 award at the Gourmand World
Cookbook awards for best cookbook illustrations, while Celebrating
|
New Zealand Wine received the prize for bast wine book.
\
|

HOME ENTERTAINMENT

i , o
* Nu Metro Home Entertainment and Nu Metro Distribution were
awarded Fwentieth Century Fox's synergy award for the second time
in recognition of superb marketing co-operation on the Fox licence.

|
MUSIC |
|
|

+ Gallo Mus;ic artists continued to achieve gold, platinum and double
platinum awards for record sales.

* 2006 South African Music Awards were won by Phuzekhemisi for
best Mask;andi album and by Bongo Maffin for best duo/group. Rex
Rabanye received a Lifetime Achievement awvard.

GROUP OPERATIONS

+ Compact |Disc Technologies was again awarded certification under
the IRMA anti-piracy compliance programme and certified by the
SABS/ISO 900022000 quality standard.
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Johncom celebrated three milestones in 2006 of recognised, loved and
respected brands that have defined generations and recorded the
stories of the remarkable people who have helped shape events in our

country through their actions and their music.
SUNDAY TIMES "100 YEARS"

In 1906, the diggers' shanty town in the heart of the richest goldfield
in the world was beginning to transform itself into the economic
heartland which would in time become South Africa's commercial
hub. As early residents, miners and magnates alike, realised that the
Witwatersrand gold discoveries were not as ephemeral as others in
the country, tents gave way to permanent structures and the birth of
a title which would over the next century become the "paper

for the people”.

To commemorate its first 100 years, the Sunday Times published four
centenary supplements, each encapsulating the most significant events
of a 25-year period. These supplements quickly became collectors'
ters and a springboard for nostalgic conversations and heated

debates.

As a more permanent tribute to its centenary, the Sunday Times is
creating a trail of monuments as an "outdoor museum” to record and
recognise some of the remarkable people and events that have
moulded and informed South African society. The memorials across
South Africa will mark some of the compelling moments in history on
the spots where they occurred. The stories told by these "living"
monuments showcase people and events from many news fields

including politics, entertainment, sports, business and society.
SOWETAN "25 YEARS"

Born in arguably the bleakest time in South Africa's racially-divided
history - the 1980s - the Sowetan celebrates 25 years on the frontier
of black publishing. This iconic newspaper brand has been a fearless
voice, a paper with a strong heritage and an indomitable spirit founded

on the ethos of nation-building.

To é:ommemorate 25 years as an active keeper of traditions, the
Sowetan published a supplement spanning the great editorial highlights
of the period including an intimate and colourful look at the title's

milestones over the years.

Combining its own silver jubilee and the 30th anniversary of the
Soweto student uprisings, a book, Sowetan Celebrating 25 Years

of the Soul Truth, was launched on the weekend of June 16 at the

prestigious Cape Town Book Fain By documenting the defining
moments in South Africa, the book has proved a quality read for a
quality audience - quality and credibility which have been the hallmarks

of the newspaper for 25 years.
GALLO MUSIC "80 YEARS"

Gallo Music celebrated its 80th birthday as the oldest independent
music company in Africa. Founded in 1926, Gallo's initial hit, the first of
many, was Al Jolson's 1928 smash, Sonny Boy. Since then, Gallo has
represented many premier international labels and artists, but the
company prides itself first and foremost on its extensive catalogue of

South African artists and repertoire,

For the past 80 years, Gallo has been creator and custodian of a huge
part of South Africa's musical heritage and this role of discovering,
nurturing and popularising South Africa's vast musical talent is set to
continue well into the future. Gallo owns the largest archive of South
African music, estimated to include 85% percent of all recordings

made in the country prior to the mid-1980s.

Gallo has enjoyed extracrdinary success since its founding eight
decades ago and its history is rich with outstanding achievements

including;
+ Gallo built the first recording studio in Africa in 1933,

* Gallo was the first record company to produce an African hit

record, Mbube, by Solomon Linda's Evening Birds in 1939.

* Miriam Makeba, who was first promoted as a solo artist and star
by Gallo, won the first Grammy award given to an artist from the
Adrican continent. She remains to this day a cuttural icon the world

over

+ Ladysmith Black Mambazo is the only South African group ever to

win two Grammy awards. -

Gallo's 80th year also marks the start of 2 combined venture with
long-standing licence partner, Warner Music International. Warner
Music Gallo Africa has the rights to market Warner Music
International’s physical and digital content in sub-Saharan Africa and
will house worldwide digital rights to Gallo Music's domestic
repertoire. A fitting tribute to 80 years of song that's moved from

vinyl to virtual.
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In a ground-breaking move, Nu Metro Home Entertainment West
Africa and Nu Metro Distribution Kenya obtained the African rights to
Amazing Grace, Nigeria's first 35mm movie, which was premiered

through Africa.

Additional media stores and cineplexes have been opened in Nigeria

and Kenya.

The Africa project has, however, encountered significant roll-out
challenges including regulatory changes affecting the importation of
stock and capital items, port congestion and the late delivery of trading
sites. This has invariably impacted on cash flows. Losses are expected

to continue in this division in the short to medium term.
Distribution, Manufacturing and Support Services

The new DVD and CD production lines introduced at Compact Disc
Technologies (CDT) in March 2005 increased production capacity and
ensured that higher customer demand was met. Effective 31 July 2006,

Johncom acquired the remaining 40% interest in CDT.

Nu Metro Distribution met the challenges of ticket price discounting
during the vear. Good content continued to be released into the

market, and key output contracts have been renewed.

Entertainment Logistic Services, South Africa's leading DVD and CD
distribution platform, benefited from increased volumes which totalled

almost 18 million units.
Pay Television

The continued growth of the digital subscriber base during the year

was supported by increased advertising revenues.

A strong M-Net programme line-up, reflecting continued investment
in local productions and in quality global product, was complemented

by SuperSport's coverage of the major sporting events of the year.
Associate
The continuation of buoyant trading conditions supported the delivery

of another excellent set of results by Caxton and CTP Publishers and

Printers.

= communications

PROSPECTS

Johncom has capitalised on buoyant markets by entrenching its leading
positions in key sectors. Our efficiency drive has also delivered,
enabling us to build a profitable, sustainable business. With this strong
base, and given the prevailing economy, we are confident that the

group's current performance is sustainable in the year ahead.

%

PRAKASH DESAI
DEPUTY GROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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Management has continued its operational focus, closing two
underperforming sites and revamping the Hyde Park, Killarney Mall
and Victoria and Alfred Waterfront sites. The installation of a
sophisticated electronic point-of-sale system increased revenue from

confectionery sales.

A successful initiative from Nu Metro Theatres has been the launch of
our own cinema advertising sales company, Popcorn Cinema
Advertising. Popcorn represents 6 of the top 10 cinema complexes

nationwide and has received support from blue-chip advertisers.

The Fanatics Movie Card, a tie-up with the Exclusive Books loyalty

programme, was Introduced in October 2005,
Books and Maps

The South African operations experienced their best year of trading in

recent history, with strong growth from key retail channels.

The division represents all major publishing segments, particularly the
illustrated, Christian and mapping categories. It alsc services some

50% of the local book trade for book warehousing and distribution.

The division's electronic mapping unit, MaplT, continues to grow
exponentially, albeit off a small base, entrenching its electronic mapping

applications.

The offshore operations delivered a nominal loss in softer markets.
The United Kingdom market, which suffered from negative sentiments
following the London bombings, was characterised by a period of
deep discounting. The cartographic business in the United Kingdom
returned to profitability, partially offsetting the negative offshore

results.
Home Entertainment

Nu Metro Home Entertainment delivered solid trading results for the
year, maintaining its leading market position in the home
entertainment industry and capitalising on changing distribution

patterns.

All key licensors have renewed their distribution agreements for
extended periods, with the division representing Disney. Warner,
Twentieth Century Fox, MGM and the BBC in the home

entertainment market.

Strong growth in DVD unit sales is expected to continue as demand

o . ‘ -
for this fo‘rmat increases steadily. There has also been a significant
increase in} demand for local content, which the division is well placed

to meet.

While piracy remains a major challenge, SAFACT, the industry
watchdog, | is making encouraging progress in addressing copyright

abuses.
A finalised charge of RS millior in respect of customs duties relating to
the 2002 fand 2003 financial years was recognised by the division

\
during the jyear.

Music

\

\
Gallo Music recorded exceptional results for the year, lifting revenue
by 13% and producing globally competitive earnings from the sale of
popular international and domestic product, particularly holiday-

season releases in the third quarter of the financial year.

|
Key Hcenceis with major studics and artists were renewed during the
year. Sub‘sequent to year end, agreement was reached effective
| April 20(})6 with Warner Music International in terms of which the
Warner Mdsic licence is permanently housed n a newly incorperated
company, Warner Music Gallo Africa. Gallo Africa has a 40% stake in
this new cotmpany which is also aiming at capitalising on the expanding

digital markjet.

Johncom is taking a focused and prudent zaproach to developing
businesses |in African markets, particularly in west and east Africa
where we| believe good returns can be made with considered
investmentsl. The 213% increase in revenusz reflects considerable

progress in |establishing the group's footprint in Nigeria and Kenya.

cDT Nigeriia commissioned its state-of-the-zrt DVD, VCD and CD
replication %\ant in Lagos in December 2005 ard is presently operating
at 96% cap%lcity

|
Working c!iosely with the office of the fede-al surveyor general in

|
Abuja, Mapl‘T Nigeria completed the digital mepping of Lagos streets,

RBusinessDay Nigeria traded in line with expectations, with copy sales

trebling since the company's acquisition in the 2004 financial year.

|
\
\
\

I
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OVERVIEW

Johncom's excellent results for the year ended 3| March 2006, deliver
the fifth consecutive year of double digit improverment in operating
profit. The strategy of improving efficiencies, seeking organic growth
from existing business portfolios, taking selective advantage of
acquisition opportunities and expanding our footprint with investment

in Africa has delivered.
FINANCIAL RESULTS AND POSITION

Revenue for the year increased by (4% to R4,651 billion (2005
R4,080 billion), while profit from operations rose 26% to R492 million
(2005: R389 million). Basic earnings per ordinary share grew by 35%
to 497 cents (2005: 364 cents) and a dividend of (00 cents per

ordinary share was declared for the year.

Cash and cash equivalents increased to R&22 million (2005
R335 million) as a result of good cash flows during the year The

balance sheet is strong and practically ungeared.

Johncom's financial results are reported in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).  Readers are
referred to the notes to the annual financial statements which outline

the changes made to the group's accounting policies.

Increased corpoerate costs for the year include fees related to a black
economic empawerment transaction, expenses from the odd-lot offer
undertaken during the year, and the impact of Johncom's increaséd
shareholder base from its unbundling in March 2005 until the
implementation of the odd-lot offer in October 2005.

OPERATIONAL REVIEW
Media

Johncom's Media division enjoyed another outstanding year in which
our newspapers were joined by our magazine and digital operations in

producing record profit contributions.

The division made investments in operations, circulation, insertions,
advertising and sales processes which are innovative and which have

delivered a substantial contribution to the improved results.

While all our newspaper and magazine titles benefited from a buoyant
advertising market, the Sunday Times exceeded industry averages to

reinforce its share of the Sunday market.

The Sowetan and SundayWorld, which now share the same
operational platforms as the Sunday Times, also reaped the benefits of
our investment in innovations and the resultant robust circulation and

advertising growth.

The Eastern Cape titles, including Daily Dispatch which was redesigned
during the year, The Herald and the Weekend Post, enjoyed strong
trading. In line with our group-wide focus on growth, we launched
several community titles and acquired others, to consolidate our

position as the leading publisher in this region.

BDFM benefited from its process of diversifying earnings by
broadening its revenue streams from supplements and projects.
BusinessDay and Financial Mail continue to strengthen despite new

entrants into the business and financial publishing market.

Our magazine division and its custom publishing operation achieved a
greatly improved performance for the vear, and recorded a pleasing
operating profit contribution. Business processes were reviewed, and
an exhibition business was launched to capitalise on divisional

synergies,

I-Net Bridge and Careerjunction were star performers in our digital
operations, both recording impressive profit growth. The division sold
its stakes in E-Degree and Leadtrain at the end of the year, positioning

itself as a value-enhancing annuity business.

Retail

Exclusive Books had a very successful year in a bullish retail
environment. Three new stores were opened during the year:in Cape
Town {Cape Gate and Piazza St Johns) and Worcester (Mountain Mill).
The Fanatics loyalty programme continues to be an important part of

branding and marketing.

Exclusive Books did particularly well from sales of Harry Potter and
the Half-Blood Prince, despite significant discounting by competitors.
Exclusive Books continued to develop its brand, winning numerous

marketing and advertising awards during the year.

Nu Metro Theatres experienced a difficult year with substantial losses
in box office revenues with the introduction in March 2005 of a
discounted ticket pricing strategy by the dominant competitor
Resultant month-on-month losses were incurred until November
2005, when average ticket prices at Nu Metro Theatres stabilised at

levels which prevailed before the start of the ticket discounting,







| am glad to report on behalf of the board ancther year of outstanding
performance. The past five years have seen a remarkable turnaround
in the history and fortunes of Johncom. In 2002, the board approved
a new and exciting vision for the group which stands on three pillars

- integration, Africa and a global presence.

The first pillar of integration (both vertical and horizontal) began to
take shape in March 2003 when the board appointed Connie Molusi
as the company's first group chief executive officer. The three stand-
alone businesses of publishing, entertainment and digital media were
integrated into one company with six business units reporting to a
single chief executive officer. This first leg of integration is ongoing and
we are mindful of the fact that much work still needs to be done.

The second pillar of our vision has presented us with interesting
challenges as reported in the deputy group chief executive officer's
review of operations, with the demographics of east and west Africa
presenting a compelling business case, but with the realities on the
ground requiring a tremendous amount of resourcefulness and

resilience.

The third pillar of our vision is still in its infancy. Johncom does,
however, enjoy excellent relationships with our global media and
entertainment partners in all of our business units. We hope that,
together with our partners, we can create value for the benefit of all
of our stakeholders.

At Johncom, we do not underestimate the role we play in society. We
shape opinions, we set the agenda and we are a force for good in
society. Every week, our newspapers, magazines and books inform the
lives of millions of people, while our theatres, home entertainment,
music and pay television entertain millions more. Our educational

initiatives have reached thousands of people in a variety of ways.

During the vear, the Sunday Times launched its centenary programme
celebrating 100 years of robust reporting and the Sowetan celebrated
25 years of pioneering journalism. Gallo Music, the doyen of the music
industry, celebrated 80 vyears of contribution to the South African
cultural scene.

Throughout what may be regarded as the most signal period in our
country's history, we have exercised our duty as a media group to
inform and protect the public interest, reflecting the many different

" voices and views of our society, to deepen and strengthen the

foundations of democracy.

Our commitment that both the media and commerce contribute to
an ethical society is unwavering. Our national survival depends on
building a society in which people act with integrity and are
accountable to their constituents, to themselves and to the principles
of our constitution.

Ll ammuynicatyony

Combating piracy continues to be a priority, especially for our film and
music businesses. Accordingly, we are working closely with industry
bodies and the authorities at every level to change the public's attitude
to pirated goods, and to bring criminals to justice.

As regards empowerment, the board has made good progress in
identifying suitable empowerment partners, and the outcome will be

announced in due course.

Johncom has once again increased its procurement spend with black
businesses. R220 million was spent during the year with black

empowered firms, an increase of | 169% over the prior year

As already reported to shareholders, the group chief executive officer;
Connie Molusi, left the company and resigned from the board on
31 July 2006.

! would like to thank all of our management, staff and customers for
their support during the year, as well as the investment community

which has shown confidence in us.

LOOKING FORWARD

In June 2007, South Africa will host the 60th congress of the World
Association of Newspapers and the [4th World Editors Forum, with
publishers and editors from around the globe expected to attend
events in Cape Town. With the renewed focus on growth and
development taking place in Africa, | believe that this event will be a
significant occasion for the continent and an opportunity to encourage
greater participation from media decision-makers from Africa and the

world.

Taking a broader view, Johncom is a mirror of society. As we enter the
phase of democratic maturity, debate increasingly centres on key issues
including wealth creation, poverty, corruption and succession which
are shaping our country's direction. As an independent, professional
and ethical voice, our group has a pivotal function to fulfil and a societal
responsibility in bringing these discourses to the fore. History and the
people of South Africa will be the final arbiters of how well we fulfil
this role.

bl Ml

MASHUDU RAMANO
CHAIRPERSON




¥
AT L

iy
ay




| —Ooln

C B BRAYSHAW (70)

CA(SA), FCA

Independent non-executive director
Appointed 21 August 2003

Retired chairperson and managing partner of
Deloitte & Touche, Colin is chairperson of
Coronation Investments and Trading Limited
and Freestone Properties Limited and a non-
executive director of various companies
including AngloGold Ashanti Limited, Anglo
Platinum Limited, Datatec Limited and
Highveld Steel and Vanadium Corporation
Limited.

Committee memt;;ps;'l é, remuneration
committee (chanrper a mmittee.
v ”“k&
‘«}/mbomjsﬂ \&56\

Non-executive dn‘ector S

Appointed | September i\99

A partner at Webber Wentzel Bowens for
14 vears prior to joining the Johnnic group in
September 1999, Paul was chief executive
officer of lohnnic Entertainment Limited and
subsequently executive director of Johnnic
Communications Limited responsible for group
business and corporate affairs  until
30 September 2005 when he became a non-
executive director. Other major directorships
include Electronic Media Network Limited,
SuperSport International Holdings Limited and
Caxton and CTP Publishers and Printers
Limited.

| Tommy

T R A OUPHANT (60)

MAP

Independent non-executive director
Appointed 21 August 2003

Tommy spent 24 years at the Metal and
Electrical Workers Union of South Africa,
latterly as general secretary. He joined Fedsure
Life in 1995 as national sales manager In
january 2002 he was appointed chairperson of
Aventura Resorts and as an executive director
in April 2002.. Other directorships include LA
Group Limited, He is a former chairperson of
Airports Company South Africa (2003-2005).
Committee membership: remuneration
committee.

| LJennis

D M MASHABELA (43)

Independent non-executive director
Appointed 24 June 2002

Dennis is a specialist consultant in corporate
and  brand  strategy. marketing and
communications, following a lengthy career
with multi-national and local advertising
agencies.

Committee memberships: investment and
restructuring committee (chairperson), audit
committee, nominations committee.

Tom

T A WIXLEY (66)

BCom, CA(SA)

Independent non-executive director
Appointed 24 june 2002

Tom is a former chairperson of Ernst & Young,
joint author with Professor G Everingham of
Corporate Governance, and a former member
of various professional committees. He is a
member of the following boards: African- Life
Assurance Company Limited, Anglo Platinum
Limited (deputy chairperson)’ and New
Corpcapital Limited.

Committee memberships: audit committee
(chairperson), remuneration committee,
norminations committee.

William

W S MOUTLOATSE (37)

BCom

Independent non-executive director
Appointed 2| August 2003

William worked for First National Bank from
1993 ta 1994, joining First National Trust as
portfolio advisor in 1995, He joined Standard
Corporate and Merchant Bank in 1996 and
was a portfolio manager from 1998 to 2000
before moving to Transnet Pension Fund in
2000 as a senior manager responsible for
equities and bonds.

Committee  memberships: audit committee,
investment and restructuring committee.

J R D MODISE (39)

BCom, BAcc, CA(SA), MBA, AMP (Harvard)
Independent non-executive director
Appointed |9 February 1998;

vacated office 21 June 2005

A C G MOLUSH (49)

BJourn, MA

Group chief executive officer
. Appointed | October 2001,

resigned 31 july 2006

K C RAMON (38)

BCompt, BCompt (Hons), CA(SA)
SEP (Harvard)

Independent non-executive director

Appointed |7 March 2003;

resigned | July 2006
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Mashudu

M E RAMANO (52)

Independent non-executive chairperson

Appointed 26 February 1997

Chairperson of African Legend Investments Limized, director of companies,
entrepreneur and chairperson of University of Venda Foundation.
Committee memberships: nominations committez (chairperson), investment
and restructuring committee, remuneration commiittee.

Prakash

P C DESAI (51)

BCom, BCompt (Hons), CA(SA)

Deputy group chief executive officer

Appointed | May 2002

Prakash was appointed deputy chief executive officer in April 2005. His
previous positions in the Johnnic Communication: group are group financial
director and group finance and operations direztor of Johnnic Publishing
Limited, and group finance and operations director of Johnnic
Cornmunications Limited. Other major directorships include Electronic Media
Network Limited, SuperSport International Foldings Limited, Caxton
and CTP Publishers and Printers Limited, Wits Health Consortium and
University of Venda Foundation. :

Howard

H BENATAR (41)

BCom, BAcc, CA(SA)

Chief financial officer

Appointed | Aprit 2005

Howard joined Johnnic Publishing Limited as finance director in September
2002 and, following the group restructuring in July 2003, was appointed
group executive: finance and administration of Johnnic Communications
Limited. Effective April 2005, he was appointed chief financial officer




' :

e

e

100 TN













Jjohncom House, 4 Biermann Avenue, Rosebank, 2196, Johannesburg -

PO Box 1746, Saxonwold, 2132
: 280 3000 * Fax: +27 11 280 5099




